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The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2015.  Bradford & Bingley plc ('B&B' or 'the
Company') is a public limited company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 and is
registered in England and Wales.  The Company and its subsidiary undertakings comprise the Bradford & Bingley plc Group
('the Group').

Overview
The Group and Company primarily operates as a servicer of mortgage loans secured on residential properties and of
associated services.  No new lending is carried out.

On 1 October 2010 UK Asset Resolution Limited ('UKAR') was established as the holding company for B&B and NRAM plc
(‘NRAM’) bringing together the two brands under shared management and a common Board of Directors.

After the transfer into public ownership by the Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities & Property etc. Order 2008, the
Group closed its doors to new mortgage applications in 2008 and committed to lend only where a formal mortgage offer or
further advance arrangement had already contractually been made.  B&B ceased to increase loans to existing customers
except in specific circumstances where doing so supported the strategic priorities of running down the Balance Sheet or
minimising impairments and losses.  In accordance with this strategy, the Group has already taken a number of actions to
facilitate mortgage redemptions and continues to plan additional initiatives with the same aim.

The overall aim of UKAR is to maximise value for the taxpayer.  This will be achieved by focusing on key activities and
themes based on each of the following three objectives:

 reduce, protect and optimise the Balance Sheet;

 to maximise cost-effectiveness and efficiency through continuous improvement; and

 to be excellent in customer and debt management.

These objectives are underpinned by the need to treat all stakeholders fairly.

Following the success of recent asset sales and in light of positive market conditions and healthy investor interest, in April
2015 UKAR began the process of seeking expressions of interest in respect of two potential transactions:

 sale of mortgage assets of circa £13bn.

 sale or outsourcing of our mortgage servicing operations.

These transactions are contingent on achieving value for money for the taxpayer and will accelerate repayment of the
government loans whilst ensuring the stability and continuity of service to customers.

Highlights of 2014/15
During the period we have made significant progress against all our key objectives and overall mission of maximising value
for the taxpayer. The key highlights are:

 Balance Sheet reduced by a further £3.5bn bringing the total reduction to £14.4bn, over 31% since formation of
UKAR in 2010.

 Total payments of £2.8bn made to taxpayers for the year to 31 March 2015 including £2.4bn loan repayments.

 Mortgage accounts three or more months in arrears, including possessions, have reduced by 16% since 31 March
2014 to 3,525.

 Underlying profit before tax was £503.0m for the year to 31 March 2015, £203.9m higher than the year to 31 March
2014.

 Ongoing administration expenses for the year were £84.7m, which is 2% lower that the year to 31 March 2014.

 In October 2014, B&B plc concluded a competitive sale process for the sale of a portfolio of performing residential
mortgages for £1.0bn.
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Key performance indicators ('KPIs')
In addition to the primary Financial Statements, we have adopted the following KPIs in managing business performance in
the context of its strategic priorities.

Strategic
priorities Financial measures

12 months
to 31 March

2015

12 months
to 31 March

2014

15 months
to 31 March

2014
Commentary

Total lending balances £bn 27.3 30.2 30.2 Lending balances reduced by 9.6%
during the year primarily due to £1.9bn
of residential redemptions. In addition,
£1.0bn of residential mortgages were
sold during the year.

Residential mortgage redemption rate %
Residential redemptions £bn

6.3
1.9

5.0
1.6

4.7
1.9

Redemption rates have increased
compared to 2014 reflecting increases
in house prices and improved levels of
remortgage activity across the market.

Government loan repayments £bn
Government loan balance £bn

2.4
21.0

1.8
23.4

2.0
23.4

No drawdowns were made in the year
from the Working Capital Facility
(‘WCF’) arranged with Her Majesty’s
Treasury (‘HM Treasury’).
Repayments of £2.4bn were made in
the year against the WCF. No
payments were made against the
Statutory Debt and the balance
remains at £18.4bn at 31 March 2015.

Optimise the
Balance
Sheet

Total cash payments to HM Treasury £bn 2.8 2.2 2.5 Total cash paid to HM Treasury during
the year.  This includes principal and
interest repayments, State guarantee
fees and corporation tax paid.  The
main driver of the increase is the
higher principal repayment.

Residential arrears balance: total
residential mortgage balance %
Residential payments overdue £m

0.07
19.3

0.08
23.7

0.08
23.7

This represents the value of
customers’ missed payments as a
proportion of the total balance of all
residential mortgages and the
reduction to 0.07% reflects that the
level of overdue debt owed on
mortgages is falling faster than the
book.

Residential arrears 3 months and over
and possessions as % of the book:
- by value
- by number of accounts
Number of residential arrears 3 months
and over and possessions cases

1.84
1.54

3,525

1.99
1.60

4,174

1.99
1.60

4,174

The reduction in arrears reflects both
our continued focus on customers in
financial difficulty and the continuing
support provided to mortgage
customers by low interest rates.

Minimise
impairment
and losses

Impairment provisions:
Residential secured £m
Cover %
Commercial/other £m
Cover %

499.5
1.82
60.8

13.21

602.8
1.99
63.0

12.17

602.8
1.99
63.0

12.17

The level of the residential impairment
Balance Sheet provision reduced by
£103.3m and the level of cover
reduced to 1.82%. The level of the
commercial impairment provision
decreased by £2.2m and the level of
cover increased by 1.04%.

Reduce costs Ongoing costs £m
Ratio of costs to average interest-earning
assets:
- ongoing %

84.7

0.27

86.2

0.25

113.5

0.26

Excluding strategy costs of £3.2m,
ongoing costs have reduced by £4.7m
(5%), reflecting a full year benefit of
lower IT costs following the transfer of
our IT infrastructure to HCL
Technologies that was completed last
year and other cost reductions as the
size of the Balance Sheet reduces.
The ratio of costs to average interest-
earning assets has remained broadly
in line with the prior year.
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Business review
These financial results are for the year to 31 March 2015.  The previous financial results were for the 15 month period to 31
March 2014 (‘15 months to March 2014’) and therefore these are included as the primary comparative below.  However, to
aid comparison to the prior year additional unaudited disclosures of the results for the 12 months to 31 March 2014 (‘12
months to March 2014’) have been made in an appendix to this document and will be referred to in the following
commentary.

Performance
The Board continue to believe it is appropriate to assess performance based on the underlying profits of the business, which
excludes the remediation of inherited regulatory defects and certain gains or losses such as the repurchase of our own
liabilities at a discount or premium.  Whilst these gains or losses permanently impact capital reserves, the Board does not
believe that they reflect the performance of the underlying business. Also excluded are movements in fair value and hedge
ineffectiveness relating to financial instruments which are expected to be held to maturity. These movements will have no
material impact over the life of the associated financial instruments.  The commentary on the results in this statement uses
underlying profits and its components as the primary measure of performance.  Analysis of the difference between the
statutory measure of profit and the underlying profit of the Group is provided below.

Underlying profit for the year to March 2015 has increased by £203.9m to £503.0m (12 months to March 2014: £299.1m; 15
months to March 2014: £363.7m).  The increase in comparable annual profits was primarily due to lower loan impairment
and higher net interest income.

Underlying net operating income for the year to March 2015 increased by £58.6m to £505.7m (12 months to March 2014:
£447.1m; 15 months to March 2014: £542.1m).  The increase was primarily due to an improved funding mix as the WCF is
repaid, partly offset by lower income from the reducing Balance Sheet.

Ongoing administrative expenses continue to fall.  For the year to March 2015 expenses were 2% lower than the previous
year at £84.7m (12 months to March 2014: £86.2m; 15 months to March 2014: £113.5m).  Impairment on loans to customers
for the year to March 2015 was a credit of £80.0m (12 months to March 2014: £75.0m charge; 15 months to March 2014:
£78.8m charge) a decrease of £155.0m from March 2014.  Net impairment on investment securities was a £2.0m credit for
the year to March 2015 (12 months to March 2014: £13.2m; 15 months to March 2014: £13.9m).  The number of mortgage
accounts three or more months in arrears including possessions reduced by 16% from 4,174 at March 2014 to 3,525 at
March 2015.

For the year to March 2015, statutory profit before tax was £413.4m (12 months to March 2014: £253.0m; 15 months to
March 2014: £319.1m).

Income Statement

For the period: 12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Net interest income 477.6 511.9
Underlying non interest income 1 28.1 30.2
Underlying net operating income 505.7 542.1
Ongoing administrative expenses (84.7) (113.5)
Impairment on loans to customers 80.0 (78.8)
Net impairment on investment securities 2.0 13.9
Underlying profit before taxation 503.0 363.7
Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments 23.5 (26.7)
Hedge ineffectiveness (67.8) (6.3)
Provision for customer redress (10.3) (14.5)

 Profit on sale of loans 15.3 -
(Loss)/gain on repurchase of own liabilities (50.3) 2.9
Statutory profit before taxation 413.4 319.1

1 Underlying non interest income includes total fee and commission income, net realised gains less losses on investment securities and
other operating income.

Net interest income
Net interest income for the year to March 2015 was £477.6m (12 months to March 2014: £419.6m; 15 months to March
2014: £511.9m). The increase in net interest income is due to the improved funding mix as the WCF is repaid.
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Business review (continued)

Performance (continued)

Net interest income (continued)
Net interest margin increased by 0.33% to 1.50% (12 months to March 2014: 1.21%; 15 months to March 2014: 1.17%),
primarily due to reducing funding costs as the relatively expensive WCF is repaid.  The WCF interest rate of Bank Base Rate
+ 500bps is in excess of the average yield on interest earning assets of 2.38%.  Over the past two years, the cost of interest-
bearing funding has fallen significantly as the WCF balance has reduced and is now 2.44% (15 months to March 2014:
2.83%; 2012: 3.49%). Without the benefit of the Statutory Debt being interest-free, B&B would be loss making.

Underlying net non-interest income
Underlying net non-interest income was £28.1m for the year to March 2015 (12 months to March 2014: £27.5m; 15 months
to March 2014: £30.2m).  The increase is mainly due to profits on the sale and leaseback of the Crossflatts (West Yorkshire)
property (£9.6m) partially offset by a reduction in net realised gains on investment securities.

Provision for customer redress
During the year £10.3m was provided for Payment Protection Insurance ('PPI') and other remediation exercises.

Accounting volatility on derivative financial instruments
B&B uses derivative financial instruments for economic hedging purposes.  Some of these are designated and accounted for
as IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' compliant fair value or cash flow hedge relationships.
Where effective hedge relationships can be established, the movement in the fair value of the derivative is offset in full or in
part by opposite movements in the fair value of the instrument being hedged or being taken to reserves.  Any ineffectiveness
arising from different movements in fair value will offset over time.

The Income Statement charge for hedge ineffectiveness was £67.8m in the year (12 months to March 2014: £4.3m; 15
months to March 2014: £6.3m). The increased charge in the year was due to the early termination of a number of
derivatives that were no longer required, having remodelled the project run off of the B&B Lifetime mortgage portfolio.

Unrealised fair value movements were a gain of £23.5m for the year to March 2015 (12 months to March 2014: £27.3m loss;
15 months to March 2014: £26.7m loss).  These gains generally relate to derivatives that act as an economic hedge but
were not treated as an accounting hedge under IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'.

Ongoing administrative expenses
Ongoing administrative expenses for the year to March 2015 were £84.7m (12 months to March 2014: £86.2m; 15 months to
March 2014: £113.5m).  The ratio of costs to average interest-earning assets was 0.27% (12 months to March 2014: 0.25%;
15 months to March 2014: 0.26%). Excluding strategy costs of £3.2m, the like-for-like reduction in costs of £4.7m (5%)
reflects the savings achieved from the transfer of our IT infrastructure to HCL Technologies (‘HCL’) being completed last
year with the current year benefiting from a full year of IT costs at the lower run rate.  Other cost reductions have been
achieved as the size of the Balance Sheet reduces.

Arrears and loan impairment
Strong arrears performance continues, B&B has seen arrears fall as a direct consequence of proactive arrears management
coupled with the continued low interest rate environment.  Residential loan impairment for the year to March 2015 was a
£79.3m credit (12 months to March 2014: £61.1m charge; 15 months to March 2014: £66.2m charge).  This was £106.8m
lower than the 2013/14 charge, reflecting a reduction in arrears cases and the benefit of improving house prices.  Write-offs
in the period totalled £62.7m (12 months to March 2014: £99.0m; 15 months to March 2014: £134.5m).

The residential loan impairment provision as at 31 March 2015 was £499.5m (March 2014: £602.8m).  The reduction of
£103.3m reflects sales of properties from possession, lower arrears volumes and minimal new fraud cases identified during
2014/15.  As a proportion of balances, the residential impairment provision was 1.82% (March 2014: 1.99%).

The number of cases three months or more in arrears, including those in possession, fell by 16% to close the period at 3,525
cases (March 2014: 4,174).

The number of properties in possession reduced from 435 cases at March 2014 to 381 at March 2015. In addition to
residential property possessions, we also have a number of buy-to-let properties managed by a Law of Property Act ('LPA')
receiver.  Our LPA 'for sale' stock decreased from 326 cases in March 2014 to 225 in March 2015.

Commercial impairment was a credit of £0.7m in the year to March 2015 (12 months to March 2014: £13.9m charge; 15
months to March 2014: £12.6m charge).  The March 2015 provision for the commercial book decreased to £60.8m (March
2014: £63.0m) mainly due to revised valuations.

Net impairment release on investment assets
The £2.0m gain (12 months to March 2014: £13.2m; 15 months to March 2014: £13.9m) relating to impairment on
investment securities mainly reflects gains on previously impaired assets.
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Business review (continued)

Performance (continued)

Gain on repurchase of own liabilities
In the year to March 2015 the Group repurchased £330.2m of its liabilities, yielding a net loss of £50.3m.  The liabilities
repurchased included subordinated debt which was bought back at a price greater than par.  Whilst this resulted in a net loss
within the year, the transaction creates value for the taxpayer by removing significant future liabilities as a large portion of
this debt attracted compounding interest, simplifies our Balance Sheet and increases our ability to deliver future transactions
to the benefit of the taxpayer.

Taxation
The overall tax charge for the year to March 2015 is £84.0m (12 months to March 2014: £57.4m; 15 months to March 2014:
£72.7m), giving an effective tax rate of 20.3% (12 months to March 2014: 22.7%; 15 months to March 2014: 22.8%).

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet has decreased by £3.5bn since March 2014 primarily as a result of a reduction in lending balances of
£2.9bn (9.6%) during the year to £27.3bn (March 2014: £30.2bn). The reduction was driven by £1.9bn of residential
redemptions and the sale of £1.0bn of residential mortgages during the year.

Liabilities
The Statutory Debt remained static over the year to March 2015 at £18.4bn, but the WCF reduced by £2.4bn (12 months to
March 2014: £1.8bn; 15 months to March 2014: £2.0bn) to £2.5bn (March 2014: £5.0bn). There were no drawdowns from
the facility in 2014/15.  Wholesale funding decreased to £6.8bn (March 2014: £8.2bn) reflecting the repayment of maturing
wholesale debt.

At the start of the period, B&B had £7.7bn of funding from HM Treasury, plus a further £15.7bn owed to the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCS').  Repayment of this debt remains a primary objective of B&B.  In the year to
March 2015 £2.4bn (12 months to March 2014: £1.8bn; 15 months to March 2014: £2.0bn) of HM Treasury debt was repaid
and, in addition, £0.4bn of other cash flows were generated for HM Treasury in the form of State guarantee fees, interest
and taxes.  The Board considers the total of all these cash flows paid to HM Treasury to be an important measure. Total
cash repayments to HM Treasury in 2014/15 were £2.8bn (12 months to March 2014: £2.2bn; 15 months to March 2014:
£2.5bn).  At March 2015 the gross loan balance due to HM Treasury and the FSCS was £21.0bn (March 2014: £23.4bn).

Capital
The Company operates under a MIPRU regulatory status.  While FCA rules require the Company to hold capital in excess of
1% of the Company's total Balance Sheet assets plus any undrawn commitments, the Board believes it appropriate to hold a
higher level of capital reflecting the increased risk in the business compared to a standard MIPRU firm. As at 31 March
2015 capital in the Company represented 7.7% of the Company's assets.

The Company's capital is provided by its shareholder (currently HM Treasury).  B&B met its capital requirements in full
throughout the year to March 2015 and has received no additional capital from HM Treasury.

The Company's total capital resources of £2,340.8m are £116.6m higher than 2014, due to profits generated in the year,
partly offset by the repurchase and cancellation of capital instruments.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Introduction
The following sections describe the Group's major risk categories under management. Other factors could affect the
Group's results, including economic factors. Therefore, the categories of risk described below should not be considered to
represent all of the potential risks and uncertainties which could impact the Group.

Risk categorisation
The Group categorises Risk under the following headings:

(i)   Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential for financial loss caused by a retail or commercial customer, or wholesale counterparty, failing to
meet their obligations to the Group as they become due. As the Group is no longer making any new retail loans, the
absolute level of retail credit risk is expected to decline as the current assets mature and wholesale credit risk will decline in
line with the maturity profile of financial instruments and investments. Credit risk is the largest risk the Group faces and the
monitoring of the recoverability of loans and amounts due from counterparties is inherent across most of the Group's
activities.

The Group employs credit behavioural scoring and fraud detection techniques to support loss minimising strategies. As no
new lending is now being undertaken, the focus of credit risk activities is on:

 a proactive approach to the identification and control of loan impairment in the residential and commercial credit
risk and credit control areas;

 fraud and professional negligence investigation; and

 the use of credit behavioural scoring and other techniques to monitor the risk profile of the existing book.

Adverse changes in the credit quality of borrowers or a general deterioration in UK economic conditions could affect the
recoverability and value of the Group's assets and, therefore, the Group's financial performance.

As credit risk is the main risk to the Group, a Credit Risk Framework has been established as part of the overall governance
framework to measure, mitigate and manage credit risk within risk appetite. To a lesser degree, the Group is exposed to
other forms of credit risk such as those arising from settlement activities where the risk is a consequence of a transaction,
rather than a driver of it.

The extent to which credit risk in the Group’s Balance Sheet is mitigated is shown by the following table of provisions for
mark-downs on impaired assets:

Balance
Sheet
value

Provision
Balance

Sheet
value

Provision

2015 2015 2014 2014
At 31 March £m £m £m £m
Loans secured on residential property 26,916 500 29,758 603
Other secured loans 400 61 455 63
Wholesale assets 2,864 154 3,052 135

The Group's ability to influence the structure of its credit risk profiles, in the absence of asset sales, is largely restricted to the
degree of control which it has over risk strategy, loan redemptions and credit collections activity. With the composition of the
loan portfolio largely fixed in the short to medium term, the Group's credit risk profiles are now determined by the credit
quality of the existing portfolio. Changes in credit quality will arise from: changes in the underlying economic environment;
assumptions about the future trends in the economy; changes in the specific characteristics of individual loans; and the
credit risk strategies developed enhance the book whilst mitigating credit risk.

It is Group policy to monitor the profile of the Group's lending exposure quarterly. Changes in the risk profile are reported as
part of the Group's stress tests. The stress tests forecast losses, impairment and capital requirements at a portfolio and
product level over a 10 year horizon given a range of economic scenarios.

The Board receives a monthly update on changes in the key drivers of the lending credit risk profile, with more detailed
information on the factors underlying these key drivers being reported monthly to the Executive Risk Committee ('ERC').
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Risk categorisation (continued)

(i)   Credit risk (continued)
Credit related policies and limits are developed and maintained within Credit Risk and are reviewed and approved annually
by the Board, or when significant changes to policies are recommended. The ERC ensures that any exposure to credit risk
remains within overall risk exposure levels as agreed by the Board.

Authorised credit risk limits for wholesale money market counterparties reflect their credit rating as well as size, depth and
quality of their capital base. Wholesale credit related policies and limits are developed and maintained by Wholesale Risk
and are approved by the Board at least annually, or when material changes to policies are recommended.

The Group holds a structured finance portfolio that primarily consists of investments in Asset Backed Securities (‘ABS’). The
credit risk is determined by the quality of the underlying securitised assets.  No new structured finance investments are
permitted apart from the purchase of those issued by the Group's own secured funding vehicles.

(ii)  Market risk
Market risk is the potential for change in Group income or Group net worth arising from movements in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates or other market prices. Effective identification and management of market risk is essential for maintaining
stable net interest income. The Group does not trade or make markets in any areas and market risk only arises either as a
legacy of past business or from supporting core activities.

Market risk comprises interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Interest rate risk is principally managed via interest rate
swaps and foreign exchange risk by foreign exchange contracts.

The Board's appetite for market risk is set out in the Board approved Market Risk Policy. Responsibility for staying within
risk appetite is delegated to the Finance & Investment Director and exposures are reported daily by Finance to senior
management and monthly by Wholesale Risk to the Asset and Liability Committee ('ALCO'). ALCO is responsible for
ensuring that the Finance & Investment Director implements market risk strategies consistently with the Board's Risk
Appetite.

(iii)  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to pay liabilities as they fall due and arises from both the mismatch in asset, liability,
derivative and collateral cash flows and from unforeseen changes to these.

The Board's appetite for Liquidity risk is low and is managed to ensure it has an adequate level of liquidity to meet its
commitments at all times and maintained within agreed HM Treasury facilities, with minimum liquidity levels set out in the
Board-approved Liquidity Risk Policy. Responsibility for managing liquidity risk is delegated to the Finance & Investment
Director. Stress tests are used to assess the adequacy of liquidity both daily and monthly by Finance and Wholesale Risk
and the results are reported to ALCO. ALCO is responsible for ensuring that the strategies of the Finance & Investment
Director maintain liquidity risk within the Board's Risk Appetite.

Sterling liquidity is held as cash balances at the Bank of England. Euro and US dollar cash balances are held at a range of
highly rated banks.

(iv) Conduct risk
Conduct risk is managed at a UKAR Group level and is defined as the 'risk of treating customers unfairly and delivering
inappropriate outcomes leading to customer detriment or impacting market integrity'.

This risk category is governed by a Conduct Risk Framework ('CRF'), which was established during 2013. The CRF forms
part of UKAR's existing Enterprise Wide Risk Management Framework ('EWRMF'). Through the EWRMF the approach to
conduct risk will be led by Senior Management and the Board. It ensures a joined-up and consistent approach to the
management of conduct risk and has been integrated into business strategy, management and decision making.

The CRF sets out the approach to the effective assessment, management and monitoring of conduct risk in accordance with
our stated conduct risk appetite.  The Group has a zero risk appetite for systemic conduct risk that could lead to unfair
customer outcomes or pose a risk to market integrity. Conduct risk is an integral part of the way the Group does business,
specifically, the interests of customers and market integrity are at the heart of the Group's strategy, business and culture.
With clear and visible leadership from the Board everyone takes responsibility for good conduct throughout our business
model with established controls to deliver fair and appropriate outcomes to our customers. Our market conduct ensures that
the Group has no impact on market integrity. To support this annual mandatory conduct risk training has been introduced
for all colleagues.
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Risk categorisation (continued)

(v)  Regulatory risk

Regulatory risk is the risk of failing to comply with the legal and regulatory requirements applying to UKAR arrangements
and activities. UKAR has a zero regulatory risk appetite and undertakes its activities in line with this. UKAR has established,
implements and maintains policies and procedures designed to detect any risk of failure by UKAR to comply with its
obligations under the regulatory system, as well as associated risks, and has put in place adequate measures and
procedures designed to minimise these risks and to enable the FCA (and any relevant regulator) to exercise its powers
effectively under the regulatory system.

(vi)  Operational risk
Operational risk is defined as 'the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or
from external events'.

The Operational Risk Framework includes a balance of policies, appropriate procedures and internal controls to enable
effective identification, assessment, monitoring and reporting of key operational risks. The framework is overseen and
reported on by the operational risk function. The key objectives of the framework are as follows:

 Risk & Control Self Assessment
Provision of a consistent framework for the identification, assessment, monitoring and reporting of significant risks
and key controls across the Group. Where controls are assessed as ineffective in design or operation, a defined
Corrective Action Plan process is in place to develop, track and implement control improvements.

 Operational risk event reporting
Provision of a consistent framework for the identification, investigation, assessment and reporting of operational risk
events (losses, gains and near misses) across the Group. Root cause analysis performed as part of operational
risk event reporting enhances the control environment by directing control improvement effort where there is a risk
of event recurrence.

 Key Risk Indicators (‘KRI’s)
Key Risk Indicators are defined as measured metrics that track changes in the level of risk exposure and control
effectiveness through reference to defined risk tolerances that are aligned to the Group’s risk appetite.  These
metrics provide an early warning of shifting risk exposures to identify emerging risks and enable control
implementation before risks materialise.

 Operational risk weighted financial impact analysis and scenario analysis
The Group undertakes operational risk weighted financial impact analysis and scenario analysis to calculate the
financial impact of both expected and unexpected operational risk events. This analysis facilitates a comparison
between operational risk, financial exposure and the operational risk capital allocation derived under the Group's
capital adequacy assessment process.

(vii)   Strategic risk
Strategic risk is managed at a UKAR Group level and is defined as the current or prospective risk to earnings and/or fair
value, given the B&B Group and the NRAM Group Balance Sheet structure, arising from changes in the business
environment and from adverse business decisions, improper implementation of decisions or lack of responsiveness to
changes in the business environment.

The UKAR Group considers the primary strategic risks to be the macroeconomic environment, market pressures, structural
asset/liability mix, political, regulatory and legal risk, infrastructure risk (including managing a mortgage book in wind down)
and project risk.

The UKAR Group's focus is on continuous assessment and measurement of movement in strategic risk status in order to
ensure continuous monitoring of potential impacts on the Ten Year Plan, annual business and operating plans and the
UKAR Group's overarching strategic objectives. Thus, close oversight of movements in strategic risk (proximity, financial
impact, probability) is maintained via monthly reporting to the Executive Committee and the Board. Where appropriate and
taking in to account the mainly external nature of strategic risk, risk management strategies can then be defined to mitigate
the impact of a risk event arising.

Richard Banks
Chief Executive Officer, on behalf of the Board
15 June 2015
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Other matters
Financial risk management objectives and  policies

Information regarding the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group, in relation to the use of financial
instruments, is given in note 35. A description of the principal risks to which the Group and Company are exposed is
provided on pages 8 to 10 which form an integral part of the audited consolidated Financial Statements.

Group structure

On 1 October 2010 UKAR was established as the holding company for B&B and NRAM, bringing together the two
companies under shared management and a common Board of Directors.

UKAR itself is 100% owned by the UK government which exercises control through UK Financial Investments Limited
('UKFI') which was set up on 3 November 2008 to manage the government’s investments in Royal Bank of Scotland, Lloyds
Banking Group, Northern Rock and Bradford & Bingley.

Although managed under a common board and management structure, NRAM and B&B remain separate legal entities and
continue to operate as individual companies with their own individual brands and Balance Sheets.

Corporate Governance

B&B is governed and controlled by UKAR as its sole shareholder.  Please refer to the UKAR Group Annual Report and
Accounts for a summary of the governance regime applicable to UKAR, B&B and NRAM.

Directors

The names of the Directors of the Company are below.

Richard Pym Chairman for whole of 2014/15
Richard Banks Director for whole of 2014/15
Ian Hares Appointed 8 July 2014
David Lunn Appointed 21 November 2014
Christopher Fox Resigned 20 November 2014
Kent Atkinson Senior Independent Director for whole of 2014/15
Michael Buckley Director for whole of 2014/15
Sue Langley Director for whole of 2014/15
Keith Morgan Director for whole of 2014/15
John Tattersall Director for whole of 2014/15

Directors' interests

UKAR, B&B and NRAM share a common Board of Directors. Their individual profiles are included within the UKAR Group
Annual Report and Accounts.

Directors’ remuneration

Details of Directors' remuneration are set out in the UKAR Group Annual Report and Accounts. These are available on
UKAR's website at www.ukar.co.uk. The remuneration disclosed in the UKAR Group accounts is the total remuneration for
the Directors for all UKAR companies.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Board, as permitted by the Company’s articles of association, has authorised all potential conflicts of interest declared
by individual Directors and a full register is reviewed and maintained.

Directors’ indemnities

UKAR has provided each Director with a Deed of Indemnity, which constituted 'qualifying third party indemnity provision' in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The Deeds were in force during the whole of the financial
period ended 31 March 2015 and remains in force as at the date of approval of the Director's Report.  The Deeds were also
in force for the benefit of Directors who resigned during the period.

The Deeds indemnify the Directors to the fullest extent permitted by law against all losses suffered or incurred in respect of
acts and omissions arising as a result of holding office.  The indemnities also extend to the reimbursement of each Director
with the costs of defending all claims, actions and proceedings including regulatory investigation arising out of or connected
with the exercise of, or failure to exercise, any of the Director’s powers, duties or responsibilities as an officer, Director,
trustee, agent or employee of the UKAR Group and any of its subsidiaries.  Reimbursement is subject to the Director’s
obligation to repay the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.  The payment obligations of
the Company under each Deed of Indemnity are backed by a specific guarantee in favour of the Director entered into
between the Company and HM Treasury.

The Company has also arranged Directors' and Officers' Insurance on behalf of the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
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Other matters (continued)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations. Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial period. Under
that law the Directors have prepared the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Directors must not
approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.  In preparing these Financial Statements, the
Directors are required to:

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and

 prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website and legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of each person’s knowledge and belief:

 the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company; and

 the Directors’ Report contained in the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Company and Group, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

 The Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, providing the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Going concern

The Directors have assessed, taking into consideration the principal risks set out on pages 8 to 10, potential future strategic
options and the current and anticipated economic conditions, the Company's and the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.  As set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements, HM Treasury has provided confirmation to the Directors of those
two companies that it is HM Treasury's intention to fund those companies so as to maintain them as a going concern and
has provided various on-demand facilities to each of those companies, to enable those companies to meet their debts as
and when they fall due, for a period up to at least 1 January 2017.  Accordingly, the Directors of B&B are satisfied at the time
of approval of these Financial Statements that the B&B Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future.  The Directors of the Company confirm that, therefore, they are satisfied that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and for this reason
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.

Longer term viability

B&B continues to receive funding and guarantees from HM Treasury to enable its orderly run-off. The Board have no
reason to believe that support from HM Treasury will be withdrawn or curtailed after 1 January 2017.  With this in mind, the
Directors have assessed the longer term viability of the Group, taking into account the strategy set out in the UKAR Group
Annual Report and the principal risks set out on pages 8 to 10, and have concluded that, provided the financial support from
HM Treasury continues, the Group will remain viable throughout the entire period of its run-off. The length of this period will
depend on the success of strategic initiatives, including the current proposals to sell further mortgage assets and to sell or
outsource the Group’s mortgage servicing operations.
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Other matters (continued)

Employees
The B&B Group is committed to providing employment practices and policies which recognise the diversity of our workforce
and ensure equality for employees regardless of sex, race, disability, age, sexual orientation or religious belief. The Group
gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities.  Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career development
and promotion of disabled persons employed by the Group.  If members of staff become disabled the Group continues
employment, either in the same or an alternative position, with appropriate retraining being given if necessary.

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through measures such as team meetings, briefings,
internal communications and engagement surveys. There are well established procedures, including regular meetings with
our recognised union, to ensure that the views of employees are taken into account in reaching decisions.

The B&B Group is committed to providing employees with comprehensive coverage of the economic and financial issues
affecting the Group. We have established a full suite of communication channels, including an extensive face-to-face briefing
programme which allows us to update our employees on our performance and any financial issues on a regular basis.

The Non-Executive Directors have service contracts with UKAR. All Executive Directors and colleagues were employed by
B&B (the legal employer) during 2014/15.

Charitable contributions
B&B supports fundraising activities by matching the first £250 of funds raised per employee and by matching employee
donations through a payroll-giving programme.  During the year to March 2015, B&B matched employee fundraising to the
total of £33,823 (15 months to March 2014: £35,809) and payroll-giving totalled £16,246 (15 months to March 2014:
£19,037).

Dividends
No dividends were paid during the year to March 2015 (15 months to March 2014: nil) and the Directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend (15 months to March 2014: nil).

Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors
As at the date of this report, each person who is a Director confirms that:

 So far as each Director is aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

 Each Director has taken such steps as he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make him or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 (2) of the Companies
Act 2006.

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ('PwC') as the Group's auditors will be put to the Shareholder at the
forthcoming AGM.

Richard Banks
Chief Executive Officer, on behalf of the Board
15 June 2015
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Independent Auditors' report to the Members of Bradford & Bingley plc

Report on the Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion:

 Bradford & Bingley plc’s Group Financial Statements and Parent Company Financial Statements (the ‘Financial
Statements’) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31
March 2015 and of the Group’s profit and the Group’s and the Parent Company’s cash flows for the year then
ended;

 the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union;

 the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

 the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

What we have audited

Bradford & Bingley plc’s financial statements comprise:

 the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets as at 31 March 2015;

 the Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended;

 the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended;

 the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended;

 the accounting policies; and

 the notes to the Financial Statements, which include other explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Financial Statements is applicable law and
IFRS as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company Financial Statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

 the Parent Company Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Independent Auditors' report to the Members of Bradford & Bingley plc (continued)

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities as set out on page 12, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  This includes an assessment of:

 whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the Parent Company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

 the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and

 the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the Financial Statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions.  We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report & Accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited Financial Statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit.  If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Craig Gentle (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
15 June 2015



Annual Report & Accounts 2015

16

The Accounts

Page

17 Consolidated Income Statement

18 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

19 Balance Sheets

20 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

21 Company Statement of Changes in Equity

22 Cash Flow Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Page Note

23 1 Principal accounting policies

32 2 Critical judgements and accounting estimates

33 3 Net interest income

33 4 Net realised gains less losses on investment securities

34 5 Unrealised fair value movements on financial

instruments and hedge ineffectiveness

34 6 Administrative expenses

35 7 (Loss)/gain on repurchase of own liabilities

36 8 Taxation

37 9 Investment securities

38 10 Wholesale assets

41 11 Loans to customers

42 12 Impairment on loans to customers

43 13 Credit quality of loans to customers

46 14 Investments in Group undertakings

48 15 Deferred taxation

49 16 Other assets

49 17 Property, plant and equipment

51 18 Intangible assets

51 19 Amounts due to banks

Page Note

52 20 Other deposits

52 21 Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans

53 22 Debt securities in issue

54 23 Other liabilities

55 24 Retirement benefit obligations

58 25 Provisions

58 26 Capital instruments

59 27 Share capital

59 28 Reserves

60 29 Release of time-expired provision for

unclaimed shares

60 30 Off-Balance Sheet commitments

61 31 Related party disclosures

62 32 Capital structure

63 33 Financial instruments

71 34 Collateral pledged and received

71 35 Financial risk management

79 36 Contingent liabilities

80 37 Ultimate controlling party

80 38 Events after the reporting period

Appendix A
Page Note

81 Unaudited Consolidated Income Statement



Annual Report & Accounts 2015

17

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
31 Mar 2014

Note £m £m

Interest receivable and similar income 3 756.9 1,038.7
Interest expense and similar charges 3 (279.3) (526.8)
Net interest income 3 477.6 511.9

Fee and commission income 11.8 17.8
Net realised gains less losses on investment securities 4 4.5 11.6
Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments 5 23.5 (26.7)
Hedge ineffectiveness 5 (67.8) (6.3)
Provision for customer redress 25 (10.3) (14.5)
Other operating income 11.8 0.8
Non-interest income (26.5) (17.3)

Net operating income 451.1 494.6

Administrative expenses 6 (84.7) (113.5)
Impairment on loans to customers credit/(charge) 12 80.0 (78.8)
Net impairment release on investment securities 9 2.0 13.9
Profit on sale of loans 11 15.3 -
(Loss)/gain on repurchase of own liabilities 7 (50.3) 2.9
Profit before taxation 413.4 319.1

Taxation 8 (84.0) (72.7)

Profit for the financial period 329.4 246.4

The notes on pages 23 to 80 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

The Company's profit after tax for the financial period was £233.2m (2014: £351.4m).  As permitted by Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Company's Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income have not been presented
in these Financial Statements.

The results above arise from continuing activities.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the 12 months to 31 March 2015
Gross of tax Tax Net of tax

£m £m £m

Profit for the financial year 413.4 (84.0) 329.4

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale instruments:
- net gains recognised in available-for-sale reserve during the year 2.4 (0.4) 2.0
- amounts transferred from available-for-sale reserve and recognised in

profit during the year (1.3) 0.2 (1.1)
Cash flow hedges:
- net losses recognised in cash flow hedge reserve during the year (560.1) 227.9 (332.2)
- amounts transferred from cash flow hedge reserve and recognised in

profit during the year 551.5 (224.4) 327.1
(7.5) 3.3 (4.2)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
- retirement benefit remeasurements 60.7 (12.2) 48.5

60.7 (12.2) 48.5

Total other comprehensive income 53.2 (8.9) 44.3
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 466.6 (92.9) 373.7

For the 15 months to 31 March 2014
Gross of tax Tax Net of tax

£m £m £m

Profit for the financial period 319.1 (72.7) 246.4

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale instruments:
- net gains recognised in available-for-sale reserve during the period 12.6 (2.9) 9.7
- amounts transferred from available-for-sale reserve and recognised in

profit during the period (1.3) 0.3 (1.0)
Cash flow hedges:
- net losses recognised in cash flow hedge reserve during the period (138.8) 37.2 (101.6)
- amounts transferred from cash flow hedge reserve and recognised in

profit during the period 95.1 (25.5) 69.6
(32.4) 9.1 (23.3)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
- retirement benefit remeasurements 20.4 (6.2) 14.2

20.4 (6.2) 14.2

Total other comprehensive expense (12.0) 2.9 (9.1)
Total comprehensive income for the financial period 307.1 (69.8) 237.3
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BALANCE SHEETS

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2015 2014 2015 2014
Note

£m £m £m £m

Assets
Balances with the Bank of England 10 1,045.6 1,118.7 1,045.6 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 10 1,594.9 1,554.5 652.8 446.4
Investment securities 9 223.2 378.3 523.7 678.8
Loans to customers 11 27,315.7 30,212.8 26,901.9 29,971.8
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 11 414.5 223.0 414.5 223.0
Derivative financial instruments 33(e) 877.2 1,569.6 553.2 1,102.6
Investments in Group undertakings 14 - - 175.0 175.0
Other assets 16 22.0 36.4 22.0 35.5
Retirement benefit assets 24 85.7 - 85.7 -
Property, plant and equipment 17 15.7 21.2 15.7 21.2
Intangible assets 18 37.7 40.1 37.7 40.1
Total assets 31,632.2 35,154.6 30,427.8 33,813.1

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 19 503.6 674.3 9.8 4.2
Other deposits 20 - - 2,928.3 3,315.1
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 21 20,963.3 23,415.3 20,963.3 23,415.3
Derivative financial instruments 33(e) 499.1 331.9 499.1 331.9
Debt securities in issue 22 6,253.8 7,538.6 2,831.4 3,636.4
Other liabilities 23 92.5 105.2 90.0 101.3
Current tax liabilities 57.6 55.1 29.6 47.6
Deferred tax liabilities 15 31.9 10.5 28.4 12.4
Retirement benefit obligations 24 9.4 20.3 9.4 20.3
Provisions 25 24.5 29.3 21.8 29.3
Capital instruments 26 7.8 159.1 7.8 159.1
Total liabilities 28,443.5 32,339.6 27,418.9 31,072.9

Equity
Issued capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the parent:
- share capital 27 361.3 361.3 361.3 361.3
- reserves 28 310.8 315.0 297.8 310.8
- retained earnings 2,516.6 2,138.7 2,349.8 2,068.1

Share capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the parent 3,188.7 2,815.0 3,008.9 2,740.2

Total equity and liabilities 31,632.2 35,154.6 30,427.8 33,813.1

The notes on pages 23 to 80 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements on pages 17 to 80 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2015 and signed on its
behalf by:

Richard Banks Ian Hares
Chief Executive Officer Finance & Investment Director

Bradford & Bingley plc is registered in England and Wales under company number 03938288.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the 12 months to 31 March 2015

 Share
capital

£m

Share
premium

reserve
£m

Capital
redemption

reserve
£m

Available-
for-sale
reserve

£m

Cash flow
hedge

reserve
£m

Retained
earnings

£m
Total equity

£m

At 1 April 2014 361.3 198.9 29.2 25.8 61.1 2,138.7 2,815.0

Other comprehensive income/(expense):
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve - - - 1.1 - - 1.1
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - (8.6) - (8.6)
- retirement benefit remeasurements - - - - - 60.7 60.7
- tax effects of the above - - - (0.2) 3.5 (12.2) (8.9)
Total other comprehensive
income/(expense) - - - 0.9 (5.1) 48.5 44.3
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 329.4 329.4
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - - 0.9 (5.1) 377.9 373.7
At 31 March 2015 361.3 198.9 29.2 26.7 56.0 2,516.6 3,188.7

For the 15 months to 31 March 2014

 Share
capital

£m

Share
premium

reserve
£m

Capital
redemption

reserve
£m

Available-
for-sale
reserve

£m

Cash flow
hedge

reserve
£m

Retained
earnings

£m
Total equity

£m

At 1 January 2013 361.3 198.9 29.2 17.1 93.1 1,864.9 2,564.5

Other comprehensive income/(expense):
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve - - - 11.3 - - 11.3
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - (43.7) - (43.7)
- retirement benefit remeasurements - - - - - 20.4 20.4
- tax effects of the above - - - (2.6) 11.7 (6.2) 2.9
Total other comprehensive
income/(expense) - - - 8.7 (32.0) 14.2   (9.1)
Profit for the financial period - - - - - 246.4 246.4
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - - 8.7 (32.0) 260.6 237.3
Release of time-expired provision for
unclaimed shares (see note 29) - - - - - 13.2 13.2
At 31 March 2014 361.3 198.9 29.2 25.8 61.1 2,138.7 2,815.0
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the 12 months to 31 March 2015

Share
capital

£m

Share
premium

reserve
£m

Capital
redemption

reserve
£m

Available-
for-sale
reserve

£m

Cash flow
hedge

reserve
£m

Retained
earnings

£m
Total equity

£m

At 1 April 2014 361.3 198.9 29.2 25.8 56.9 2,068.1 2,740.2

Other comprehensive income/(expense):
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve - - - 1.1 - - 1.1
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - (17.4) - (17.4)
- retirement benefit remeasurements - - - - - 60.7 60.7
- tax effects of the above - - - (0.2) 3.5 (12.2) (8.9)
Total other comprehensive
income/(expense) - - - 0.9 (13.9) 48.5 35.5
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 233.2 233.2
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - - 0.9 (13.9) 281.7 268.7
At 31 March 2015 361.3 198.9 29.2 26.7 43.0 2,349.8 3,008.9

For the 15 months to 31 March 2014

Share
capital

£m

Share
premium

reserve
£m

Capital
redemption

reserve
£m

Available
-for-sale
reserve

£m

Cash flow
hedge

reserve
£m

Retained
earnings

£m
Total equity

£m

At 1 January 2013 361.3 198.9 29.2 17.1 86.8 1,689.3 2,382.6

Other comprehensive income/(expense):
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve - - - 11.3 - - 11.3
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - (41.6) - (41.6)
- retirement benefit remeasurements - - - - - 20.4 20.4
- tax effects of the above - - - (2.6) 11.7 (6.2) 2.9
Total other comprehensive income/(expense) - - - 8.7 (29.9) 14.2 (7.0)
Profit for the financial period - - - - - 351.4 351.4
Total comprehensive (expense)/income - - - 8.7 (29.9) 365.6 344.4
Release of time-expired provision for
unclaimed shares (see note 29) - - - - - 13.2 13.2
At 31 March 2014 361.3 198.9 29.2 25.8 56.9 2,068.1 2,740.2
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group Company
12 months to

31 Mar 2015
15 months to
31 Mar 2014

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation for the financial period 413.4 319.1 291.2 409.7
Adjustments to reconcile profit to cash (used in)/from
operating activities:
- profit on sale of loans (15.3) - (10.3) -
- provision for customer redress 10.3 14.5 5.6 14.5
- depreciation and amortisation 15.7 18.4 15.7 18.4
- impairment on loans to customers (80.0) 78.8 (59.5) 3.6
- profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (9.6) - (9.6) -
- net impairment release on investment securities (2.0) (13.9) (2.0) (13.9)
- loss/(gain) on repurchase of own liabilities 50.3 (2.9) 50.3 (2.9)
- fair value adjustments on financial instruments (317.3) 32.7 (313.9) 32.4
- other non-cash movements (500.1) (7.4) (443.5) 31.3

Cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
before changes in operating assets and liabilities (434.6) 439.3 (476.0) 493.1

Net decrease in operating assets:
- loans to customers 2,090.5 2,176.2 2,491.9 2,335.2
- sale of loans 901.9 - 647.8 -
- derivative financial instruments receivable 692.4 230.7 549.4 197.2
- other assets 17.5 24.1 26.3 22.5

Net (decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
- amounts due to banks and other deposits (170.7) (546.9) (381.2) (1,930.1)
- derivative financial instruments payable 167.2 (170.3) 167.2 (170.3)
- debt securities in issue (514.8) (792.4) (138.3) (413.9)
- other liabilities (68.8) 49.7 (39.0) 12.2
- provisions (15.6) (53.1) (17.1) (53.1)

 Income tax paid (69.0) (19.4) (69.0) (19.4)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,596.0 1,337.9 2,762.0 473.4

Cash flows from investing activities:
- purchases of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets (12.7) (8.7) (12.7) (8.7)
- proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment 14.5 - 14.5 -
- proceeds from sale and redemption of investment

securities 151.8 253.9 151.8 253.9
- return of capital from subsidiary undertakings - - - 816.2

Net cash generated from investing activities 153.6 245.2 153.6 1,061.4

Cash flows used in financing activities:
- repayment of Working Capital Facility (2,439.7) (2,000.0) (2,439.7) (2,000.0)
- repurchase of own liabilities (342.3) (3.2) (342.3) (3.2)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,782.0) (2,003.2) (2,782.0) (2,003.2)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (32.4) (420.1) 133.6 (468.4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,672.5 3,092.6 1,564.5 2,032.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,640.1 2,672.5 1,698.1 1,564.5

Represented by cash and assets with original
maturity of three months or less within:
- balances with the Bank of England 1,045.3 1,118.2 1,045.3 1,118.2
- cash at bank and in hand 1,594.8 1,554.3 652.8 446.3

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,640.1 2,672.5 1,698.1 1,564.5
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1.  Principal accounting policies

Bradford & Bingley plc (‘the Company’) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The Company's accounting reference date was changed to 31 March from 31 December to align to the year end of the
Company's ultimate parent, HM Treasury, and consequently the 31 March 2014 Consolidated Income Statement was for a
15 month period.  To aid year-on-year comparisons, Appendix A on page 81 includes an unaudited Consolidated Income
Statement for the Group for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014.  This unaudited information has been prepared using
accounting bases and policies which are consistent with those used in the audited Financial Statements.

These Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 15 June 2015 and will be put to the shareholder
for approval at the Company's Annual General Meeting to be held on 30 June 2015.

(a) Statement of compliance
Both the B&B Company Financial Statements and the Group (comprising B&B and its subsidiaries) Financial Statements
have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS')
as adopted by the European Union (‘EU’). IFRS comprises accounting standards prefixed IFRS issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) and those prefixed IAS which were issued by the IASB’s predecessor body, along with
interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) prefixed IFRIC and those prefixed SIC which were
issued by the IFRIC’s predecessor body. In publishing the Company Financial Statements here, together with the Group
Financial Statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
present its individual Income Statement and related notes.

For these 2015 Financial Statements, including the 2014 comparative financial information where applicable, the Group and
Company have adopted the following statements for the first time:

 The June 2013 amendments to IAS 39 relating to 'Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting',
which restrict the circumstances in which a novation of a derivative contract may be treated as a continuation of an
existing hedge relationship. This amendment had no material impact on the Group or Company.

 IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’, issued May 2013 and mandatory for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. This
statement had no material impact on the Group or Company.

For these 2015 Financial Statements the Group and Company have not adopted the following statements; the Group and
Company are assessing the impacts of these statements on their Financial Statements:

 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’; on 24 July 2014 the IASB published the final version (excluding macro-hedging),
replacing most of the guidance in IAS 39. The IASB intends that IFRS 9 will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but the timing of EU endorsement is yet to be determined. The Group
continues to monitor developments.  IFRS 9 is expected to have major implications for the Group and Company, in
relation to impairment of loans to customers, hedging and which assets are carried at amortised cost and which at
fair value.

 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, issued May 2014, effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017, and yet to be endorsed by the EU.  No material impacts are expected for the Group or Company.

 Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: ‘Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation’, issued
May 2014 and yet to be endorsed by the EU.  The amendments clarify that a revenue-based method is not
considered to be an appropriate manifestation of consumption.  These amendments are mandatory for the Group
and Company Financial Statements for the year to 31 March 2017.  No material impacts are expected for the
Group or Company.

 ‘Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)’, issued November 2013.  These narrow
scope amendments are effective from July 2014, however, they are not considered significant to the Group or
Company as no further employee contributions are anticipated to be made to the Group’s defined benefit pension
scheme.

 The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle, issued in December 2013.  These changes are mandatory
for the Group and Company Financial Statements for the year to 31 March 2016.  No material impacts are
expected for the Group or Company.

 The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle, issued in December 2013.  These changes are mandatory
for the Group and Company Financial Statements for the year to 31 March 2016.  No material impacts are
expected for the Group or Company.

 The Annual improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle, issued in September 2014 and yet to be endorsed by the EU.
These changes are mandatory for the Group and Company Financial Statements for the year to 31 March 2017.
No material impacts are expected for the Group or Company.

All other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not considered relevant to, and have no impact
upon, the Financial Statements of the Group or Company.
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and using the historical cost convention except:

(i) the following assets and liabilities are carried at their fair value:

 derivative financial instruments; and

 financial instruments categorised under IAS 39 as ‘available-for-sale’; and

(ii) where fair value hedge accounting has been applied, the carrying value of hedged items has been adjusted to take
account of the fair value of the risk which has been hedged.

The validity of the going concern basis of accounting is dependent upon the funding position of the Company.  At the date of
approval of these Financial Statements the Group is reliant upon the financing facilities and also upon the guarantee
arrangements provided to the Company by HM Treasury.  Withdrawal of the financing facilities or the guarantee
arrangements would have a significant impact on the Company’s operations and its ability to continue as a going concern, in
which case adjustments may have to be made to reduce the carrying value of assets to recoverable amounts and to provide
for further liabilities that might arise.  At the signing date of these Financial Statements HM Treasury has confirmed its
intentions to continue to provide funding until at least 1 January 2017.

The Directors consider that the accounting policies set out in this note are the most appropriate to the Group’s and the
Company’s circumstances, have been consistently applied to both the Group and the Company in dealing with items which
are considered material and are supported by reasonable and prudent estimates and judgements.

The accounting policies have been applied to all periods presented in these Financial Statements and are consistent with
the accounting policies used by the B&B Group in preparing its Interim Financial Report for the six months ended 30
September 2014.

B&B is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA') as a mortgage administration company and the Directors
believe that B&B has an appropriate and adequate level of capital to support its activities subject to the continuing support of
HM Treasury.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU-adopted IFRS and with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.  A summary of accounting policies is set out below. The
preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with these accounting policies and generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported values of assets and liabilities at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amounts, events or actions, actual results ultimately
may differ from those estimates (see note 2).

The Directors consider the business to comprise one operating and geographical segment due to the similarity of risks faced
within its UK-based residential and commercial portfolios.

The Company includes the assets, liabilities and transactions of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP within its own
Financial Statements.

(c) Basis of consolidation
The Group’s Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and
incorporate on a fully consolidated line-by-line basis the Financial Statements of the Company and those entities (including
special purpose structures) which are controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). An investor controls an investee when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.  Where subsidiaries have been acquired during a period, their results are consolidated
into the Group's Financial Statements from the date control is transferred to the Group. Where subsidiaries have been
disposed of, their results are consolidated to the date of disposal. On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed
to the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Any difference between the consideration given and the fair value
of the net assets acquired is capitalised as goodwill, which is subject to impairment testing in accordance with IAS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’. Where necessary, the Group Financial Statements include adjustments to bring the financial
statements of subsidiaries into alignment with the accounting policies used by the Group. All intra-group transactions and
balances are eliminated on consolidation.

The Group has securitised various residential mortgage loans, generally by sale or transfer to Special Purpose Vehicles
(‘SPVs’), which in turn have issued securities to investors. The SPVs are consolidated line-by-line into the Group Financial
Statements if they are, in substance, controlled by the Company; all of the Group's SPVs are fully consolidated.
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d) Interest income and expense
For all interest-bearing financial instruments except derivatives, interest income and expense are recognised in the Income
Statement on an Effective Interest Rate ('EIR') basis.

The EIR method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and spreads interest income or interest
expense on a level yield basis over the expected life of the instrument or an appropriate shorter period. The calculation
includes all directly attributable incremental fees and costs, premia on acquisition of mortgage portfolios and all other premia
and discounts as well as interest.  In respect of loans to customers, the elements other than interest are spread over the
period to which the product reprices to a Standard or Product Variable Rate.  The EIR is the rate which, at the inception of
the instrument, exactly discounts expected future cash flows over the appropriate period to the initial carrying amount.
When calculating the EIR, future cash flows are estimated, considering all contractual terms of the instrument (for example
prepayment options) but potential future credit losses are not considered.

Interest on derivatives is included in interest income where the derivative is hedging interest income and interest expense
where the derivative is hedging interest expense.

When a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets is written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income continues to be recognised by applying the applicable EIR to the reduced balance.

(e) Fee and commission income
Where Value Added Tax ('VAT') is charged, income is stated net of VAT.

Commission receivable from the renewal of third party regulated financial services products was recognised as income
within ‘fee and commission income’ when the renewal policy went ‘on risk’, net of any provision for repayment in the event of
early termination by the customer. If the commission is receivable on deferred terms, a deemed interest element of the
commission is separated and recognised on an EIR basis over the deferred payment period.

Fees charged to existing borrowers, including arrears and redemption fees, are recognised in fee and commission income
as they arise.

(f) Bonuses payable
An accrual is made for all bonuses which have been earned by the Balance Sheet date even though these may not
subsequently be payable due to clawback or the employee leaving the Group.

(g) Financial instruments
In accordance with IAS 39 each financial asset is classified at initial recognition into one of four categories:
(i)   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
(ii)  Held-to-maturity;
(iii)  Loans and receivables; or
(iv)  Available-for-sale;

and each financial liability into one of two categories:
(v)   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or
(vi)  Other liabilities.

Measurement of financial instruments is either at amortised cost (categories (ii), (iii) and (vi) above) or at fair value
(categories (i), (iv) and (v) above), depending on the category of financial instrument.

Amortised cost is the amount measured at initial recognition adjusted for subsequent principal and other payments, less
cumulative amortisation calculated using the EIR method; the amortisation is taken to interest income or expense depending
on whether the instrument is an asset or a liability.  For assets, the amortised cost balance is reduced where appropriate by
an allowance for amounts which are considered to be impaired or uncollectible.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' defines 'fair value' as 'the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date'.  Where an active market is
considered to exist, fair values are based on quoted prices or lead manager prices. For instruments which do not have
active markets, fair value is calculated using present value models, which take individual cash flows together with
assumptions based on market conditions and credit spreads, and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for
pricing financial instruments. Interest income and interest expense on instruments carried at fair value are included in the
Income Statement in ‘interest receivable and similar income’ or ‘interest expense and similar charges’.  Movements in fair
value are recognised in the ‘unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments’ line in the Income Statement except
in the case of instruments categorised as ‘available-for-sale’, in which case the fair value movements are taken to the
‘available-for-sale’ reserve.  On sale or de-recognition of an available-for-sale instrument the accumulated fair value
movements are transferred from the ‘available-for-sale’ reserve to the ‘net realised gains less losses on investment
securities’ line of the Income Statement.
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(h) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
All of the Group’s derivative contracts are used for commercial management of exposures to interest rate risks, foreign
currency risks and risks arising from forecast transactions.

For many of the Group's derivative contracts, hedge accounting is applied. However, in some cases natural offsets apply.

Each derivative is carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet; as an asset when the fair value is positive and as a liability
when the fair value is negative. The fair value of a derivative includes any interest accrued on that derivative. Changes in
the fair value of derivatives are charged to the Income Statement; however, by applying the hedge accounting rules set out
in IAS 39, the changes in fair value of derivatives which are used to hedge particular risks can either be mitigated in the
Income Statement (fair value hedge accounting) or recognised in other comprehensive income (cash flow hedge
accounting). The Group has adopted cash flow hedge accounting and fair value hedge accounting.

(i)   Cash flow hedge accounting
A cash flow hedge is used to hedge exposures to variability in cash flows such as variable rate financial assets and
liabilities. The effective portion of changes in the derivative fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
recycled to the Income Statement in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss. The fair value gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

(ii)   Fair value hedge accounting
A fair value hedge is used to hedge exposures to variability in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, such as fixed
rate loans.  Changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
Income Statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk.  The Group uses fair value hedge accounting on one-to-one relationship and portfolio hedging bases, as
described below.

Where hedge accounting is not applied, changes in fair values are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

(iii)  One-to-one fair value hedges
Where one or more specific derivative financial instruments hedge the changes in fair value of a specific asset or liability,
provided that the hedge arrangement meets the requirements of IAS 39 to be classed as ‘highly effective’, the associated
hedged item is carried on the Balance Sheet at fair value in respect of the hedged risk. Fair value gains and losses are
recognised in the Income Statement, mitigating the fair value movements on the associated derivative financial instruments.
The Income Statement immediately recognises any hedge accounting ‘ineffectiveness’; that is any difference between the
fair value movement on the hedging instrument and that on the hedged item.

(iv)  Portfolio fair value hedges
Where a group of derivative financial instruments hedges the interest rate exposure of a group of assets or liabilities and the
hedge meets the requirements of IAS 39 to be classed as ‘highly effective’, the hedge relationship is accounted for in the
same way as a one-to-one fair value hedge except that the Balance Sheet carrying value of the hedged items is not
adjusted; instead, the difference between the carrying value and the fair value in respect of the hedged risk is carried on the
Balance Sheet in ‘fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging’.

(v)   Hedge effectiveness
At the inception of each hedging arrangement the relationship between the hedging instruments and the hedged items is
documented, as well as the risk management objective and strategy. Also documented is an assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in the hedging arrangement are 'highly effective'
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items. Under IAS 39 a hedge is deemed to be 'highly
effective' if effectiveness is forecast to fall and is actually found to fall, within the 80% to 125% range.  Any hedge
relationship falling outside these limits is deemed to be ineffective and hedge accounting is discontinued.

(vi)  Termination of hedges
Where a hedge relationship is terminated or deemed not to be highly effective (other than as a result of the hedged item
being de-recognised from the Balance Sheet due to sale or other reason), the adjustment relating to the terminated hedge
relationship is amortised to the Income Statement over the period that the hedged item affects profit and loss.

(vii)  Embedded derivatives
Certain financial instruments have derivative features embedded within them. Where the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host instrument and where changes in fair value of the
host instrument are not reflected in the Income Statement, the embedded derivative is separated from the host and carried
on the Balance Sheet at fair value with gains and losses on the embedded derivative being recognised in the Income
Statement.  In accordance with IFRIC 9 ‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’ the decision as to whether to separate
and value an embedded derivative is reassessed when, and only when, the terms of the host contract are significantly
modified.
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(j) Sale and repurchase agreements
Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) continue to be reported as they were originally classified within
the Balance Sheet as the risks and rewards associated with that asset have been retained. The counterparty liability is
included in ‘amounts due to banks’ or ‘other deposits’. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) are
recorded as ‘cash at bank and in hand’. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and
accrued over the life of the agreements using the EIR method.

(k) Impairment losses
Financial assets which are not held at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed for indications of possible impairment
throughout the period and at each published Balance Sheet date.  An impairment loss is recognised if, and only if, there is
objective evidence that a loss event (or events) has occurred after initial recognition and before the Balance Sheet date and
has a reliably measurable impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets.
Losses that are incurred as a result of events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are not recognised.

(i) Financial assets held at amortised cost
For each asset, an assessment is made as to whether an impairment provision should be made on either an individual or a
collective basis. Assets where an individual impairment assessment is made include all loans in possession or held for sale
with a Law of Property Act ('LPA') receiver and others which management consider to be individually impaired, for example
where a fraud has been uncovered. The carrying value of the asset at the Balance Sheet date is reduced by applying an
impairment allowance to the net present value of the expected future cash flows associated with the asset, calculated at the
asset’s original EIR. These cash flows include, where appropriate, estimated amounts recoverable by possession and sale
of a secured property, taking into account a discount on property value to reflect a forced sale.

All assets that have been assessed as having no individual impairment are then collectively assessed for impairment,
grouped by assets with similar characteristics.  Assessment is made of impairment arising due to events which are believed
to have occurred by the Balance Sheet date but have not yet been reported, taking into account the economic climate in the
market. This collective impairment is reflected by reducing the carrying value by applying an impairment allowance.

Impairment of assets is charged in the Income Statement in the 'impairment on loans to customers' and 'net impairment on
investment securities' lines.

For impaired loans to customers, interest is accrued for accounting purposes on the loan amount after any impairment
adjustments in accordance with IAS 39, using the original EIR of the loan. However, for the purposes of the amount legally
due from the borrower, interest continues to accrue on the full outstanding balance and it is this full balance plus full interest
which is pursued for collection.

A loan to a customer is written off and any associated impairment allowance released when and only when the property is
sold or the account is redeemed.  Any subsequent proceeds are recognised on a cash basis and offset against 'impairment
on loans to customers' in the Income Statement. An investment security is written off and any associated impairment
allowance released when there is strong evidence to suggest that nothing will be recovered.

Where a property has been taken into possession or an LPA receiver has been appointed to collect rental income on the
property, the loan continues to be carried within 'loans to customers'.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value, which appropriately reflects any impairment.
Impairment is recognised when the investment security exhibits objective evidence of impairment or is uncollectible. Such
evidence may include:

 Significant financial difficulty;
 Payment defaults;
 Renegotiation of terms due to borrower difficulty;
 Sustained fall in credit rating or creditworthiness;
 Significant restructuring;
 Disappearance of an active market;
 Significant and sustained fall in market price; or
 Observable data indicating measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial

assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified within individual assets in the group.

Movements in the fair value which are a reflection of impairment of the long term value of the investment security are
charged to ‘net impairment on investment securities’ in the Income Statement.  Impairment losses recognised against
investment securities are reversed through ‘net impairment on investment securities’ in the Income Statement if the
improvement relates to an event occurring after the initial impairment was recognised. An investment security is written off
and any associated impairment allowance released when there is strong evidence to suggest that nothing will be recovered.

If there is a sustained increase in the fair value of an investment security where an impairment loss has previously been
recognised but no improvement can be attributed to a subsequent credit event, then the increase in value may be treated as
a revaluation and recognised through other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve.
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(l) Recognition and de-recognition of assets and liabilities
Purchases and sales of assets are accounted for once the parties are legally committed to the contract and the risks and
rewards of the loans have been transferred.

A financial asset is de-recognised (ie, removed from the Balance Sheet) only when substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with that asset have been transferred to another party.

A financial liability is de-recognised only when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

In accordance with IFRS 5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations', assets and liabilities are
classified as 'held for sale' if they are available for immediate sale in their present condition and the sale is considered to be
'highly probable'.

(m) Debt and equity securities in issue
Issued securities, including capital instruments, are classified as liabilities where the contractual arrangements result in the
issuer having an obligation to deliver either cash or another financial asset to the security holder, or to exchange financial
instruments under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer. Issued securities are classified as equity where
they meet the definition of equity and confer a residual interest in the issuer’s assets on the holder of the securities. Issued
securities include ordinary share capital.

On initial recognition, debt issued is measured at its fair value net of directly attributable issue and transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the EIR method to amortise attributable issue and transaction costs,
premia and discounts over the life of the instrument. These costs are charged along with interest on the debt to ‘interest
expense and similar charges’. In the Balance Sheet the carrying value of the instrument includes the amount of these
adjustments which still remains to be charged to the Income Statement.

Equity instruments (including share capital) are initially recognised at net proceeds after deducting transaction costs and any
related income tax.

(n) Foreign currencies
The presentation and functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group is pounds sterling.

Transactions which are not denominated in pounds sterling are translated into sterling at the spot rate of exchange on the
date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities which are not denominated in pounds sterling are translated into
pounds sterling at the closing rate of exchange at the Balance Sheet date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the restatement and settlement of such transactions are recognised in the
Income Statement.

(o) Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise capitalised computer software systems and licences.

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible assets where it is probable that future benefits will flow
to the Group.  Thereafter they are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is provided on a straight line
basis over their useful economic lives which may be up to five years. Those which have a life expectancy at the outset of
less than two years are not capitalised but instead their costs are charged to the Income Statement as they arise.

Costs that are directly associated with developing identifiable computer software systems are capitalised if the criteria in IAS
38 ‘Intangible Assets’ are satisfied; the main criteria are that the successful completion of the development project is
reasonably certain and that the software is expected to generate future economic benefits. Each item of capitalised
developed computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation; amortisation is provided on a straight line
basis over its estimated useful life. Costs that do not qualify for capitalisation or are associated with maintaining software
are charged to the Income Statement as they arise.

Intangible assets in the course of construction are not amortised until they have been completed. The costs of financing
intangible assets in the course of construction are not included in the costs of the assets.  Intangible assets in the course of
construction are included in the impairment test referred to below where appropriate.

All items of intangible assets are reviewed at each published Balance Sheet date for any indication of impairment. If there is
indication of impairment, the carrying value is reviewed. If any impairment is identified, the asset is written down to the
impaired value being the higher of value in use and estimated net proceeds of sale with the impairment being charged
immediately to the Income Statement. In addition, the estimated useful lives are also reassessed annually and if they are
judged to have changed then the rate of amortisation charged in periods after the date of the change reflects the revised
estimates.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances which are highly liquid and have an original maturity of three months or less.
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

(q) Taxation
(i) Current tax
The charge for taxation is based on the result for the period and takes into account taxation deferred or accelerated arising
from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of certain items for taxation and for accounting purposes. Tax
relating to items which are taken directly to reserves is also taken directly to reserves.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statements.  Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. The principal temporary differences arise from
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities including derivative
contracts, provisions for pensions and other post-retirement benefits, tax losses carried forward, and changes in accounting
basis on adoption of IFRS.

Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which these
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value remeasurement of available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are
recognised in other comprehensive income, is also recognised in other comprehensive income and, subsequently, in the
consolidated Income Statement together with the associated gain or loss.

(r) Retirement benefits
The Group operates a number of retirement benefit plans for its employees, including defined contribution plans, defined
benefit plans and post-retirement healthcare benefits. The costs of these plans are charged to the 'administrative expenses'
line of the Income Statement and to other comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' and IFRC
14 ‘IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their interaction’.

A defined contribution plan is a pension arrangement where the employer pays fixed contributions into a separate fund. The
contributions are charged to the Income Statement when employees have rendered the related services, which is generally
in the period of contribution. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.  Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

A defined benefit plan is a pension arrangement that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
during retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary.

A full actuarial valuation of the Group's defined benefit sections of the existing schemes is undertaken every three years,
with interim reviews in the intervening years; these valuations are updated at each published balance sheet date by qualified
independent actuaries. For the purpose of these updates, scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.  The inflation assumption used to
determine benefit obligations is CPI. Details of the actuarial assumptions made are provided in note 24. The resulting net
surplus or deficit is included in the Group’s and Company’s Balance Sheet. Retirement benefit remeasurements are charged
to retained earnings in full in the period in which they occur and pass through other comprehensive income rather than the
Income Statement. The Group’s Income Statement includes the current service cost of providing pension benefits, the
expected return on the scheme’s assets, net of administration costs, and the interest cost on the scheme’s liabilities.
Following closure of the scheme, the current service cost is nil.

Though the scheme is in surplus on an accounting basis, it is in deficit on a trustee’s funding basis.  The Group is committed
to a funding plan to address this deficit. Surpluses on an accounting basis are only recognised on the Balance Sheet to the
extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme.

For defined contribution plans, the Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.  The
contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.  Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Post-retirement healthcare benefits are accounted for in the same way as pension benefits, with the present value of the
defined benefit obligation being carried as a liability on the Group’s and Company’s Balance Sheets.
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1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(s) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment as appropriate.
Additions and subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying value or are recognised as a separate asset only
when they improve the expected future economic benefits to be derived from the asset.  All other expenditure is regarded as
repairs and maintenance and is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which it is incurred. Depreciation is
provided so as to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of each significant component of each item of property,
plant and equipment over that component’s estimated useful life, as follows:

 Freehold land is not depreciated
 Freehold and leasehold buildings 6.7% pa on a straight line basis
 Motor vehicles 25% pa on a reducing balance basis
 Computer equipment 20% - 33% pa on a straight line basis
 Fixtures and fittings 20% pa on a straight line basis
 Other plant and equipment and major alterations to buildings 10% pa on a straight line basis or over the remaining

life of the building if shorter

All items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each published balance sheet date for any indication of
impairment. If there is indication of impairment, the carrying value is reviewed.  If any impairment is identified the asset is
written down to the higher of value in use and estimated net proceeds of sale, with the impairment being charged
immediately in the Income Statement. In addition, the estimated useful lives and estimated residual values are also
reassessed annually and if they are judged to have changed then the rate of depreciation charged in periods after the date
of the change reflects the revised estimates.

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they have been completed and transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment. The costs of financing assets in the course of construction are not included in
the costs of the assets. Assets in the course of construction are included within the impairment test referred to above where
appropriate.

A previously recognised impairment charge on an asset may be reversed in full or in part where a change in circumstances
leads to a change in the estimates used to determine its recoverable amount. The carrying value of the asset will not be
increased above the carrying value at which it would have been held had the impairment not been recognised.

(t) Leases
Rentals under operating leases are charged to ‘administrative expenses’ on a straight line basis to the date of change in the
rental amount.  Typically, operating leases have rent review dates in their terms, several years apart, and between those
dates the annual rent remains constant.  Any initial rent-free period and any lease premia paid are amortised over the full
lease period on a straight line basis.

If a lease agreement in which the Group is a lessee transfers the risks and rewards of the asset, the lease is recorded as a
finance lease and the related asset is capitalised. At inception the asset is recorded at the lower of the present value of the
minimum lease payments and fair value. The asset is then depreciated in the same way as an owned asset, over the
shorter of the useful life and the term of the lease. The finance element of the lease cost is charged to the Income
Statement in 'interest expense and similar charges'. The lease obligations are recorded as borrowings. If the lease does
not transfer the risks and rewards of the asset, the lease is recorded as an operating lease.

Where an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor
in compensation is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which termination is made.

Where the Group/Company leases assets out under an operating lease agreement, the asset is included in the Balance
Sheet based on the nature of the asset. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight line basis.

Where the Group sells and leases back an asset, provided the sale and the lease are each on arm’s length terms, the two
elements of the transaction are accounted for separately, with a profit or loss being immediately recognised on the sale.

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when, and only when, the following criteria are all met:

 there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are released if they no longer meet the above criteria.

Provisions are discounted to net present value, using rates which reflect the risks specific to the provision, if the effect of
discounting is material.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence depends upon the outcome of uncertain future events, or are
present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertain or cannot be reliably measured.  Contingent liabilities are
not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed unless they are remote.
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1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(v) Investment securities held
Investment securities intended for use on a continuing basis in the Group’s/Company's activities are categorised either as
‘available-for-sale’ or as ‘loans and receivables’; for each instrument, the Directors adopt the category which they consider
to be the most appropriate.

Investment securities categorised as available-for-sale are carried at fair value with movements in fair value, excluding
impairment provisions, being taken to the available-for-sale reserve. If an investment security which has been categorised
as available-for-sale becomes impaired, the impairment is charged to the Income Statement in the ‘net impairment on
investment securities’ line.

Investment securities categorised as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any impairment, with any
impairment being charged to the Income Statement in the ‘net impairment on investment securities’ line.

(w) Investments in Group undertakings
In the Financial Statements of the Company, investments in Group undertakings are carried at cost less any impairment.
Investments are reviewed at each published Balance Sheet date for any indication of impairment.  If there is indication of
impairment of any investment, the carrying value of the investment is reviewed and any impairment identified is charged
immediately to the Company's Income Statement.

(x) Financial guarantees
The Group and Company apply insurance accounting to financial guarantee contracts and provide against any claims
arising under such contracts.

(y) Loan commitments
Loan commitments are disclosed but are accounted for only if there is an onerous commitment; there were no onerous loan
commitments in the period or the previous year. The commitment ceases to be disclosed once it is advanced or expires.
Loan commitments comprise commitments to advance cash sums and to allow drawdown of monies previously overpaid
(where the terms of the loan specifically allow).
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2. Critical judgements and accounting estimates

In preparing the Financial Statements management are required to make a series of judgements and estimates.
Judgements involve an interpretation of requirements to decide how to allocate, value or recognise an item.  Estimates arise
from using assumptions which result in a range of possible outcomes. The most important judgements and estimates used
in preparing these Financial Statements are described below.

(a) Impairment of investment securities
For investment securities carried at fair value judgement is applied in determining whether any fall in value represents
impairment and whether any increase represents a reversal of impairment.  Factors considered in determining whether an
asset is impaired, or impairment has reversed, are detailed in note 1(k).

(b) Impairment losses on loans
The Group reviews its loan impairment on a monthly basis and assesses individual impairment losses by reference to an
individual review of the underlying asset and utilises actual loss experience to provide both probabilities of defaults and
property forced sale discounts across a portfolio of products.  Collective impairment losses on loans are calculated using a
statistical model.  The key assumptions used in this model are: the probability of any balance entering into default as a result
of an event that had occurred prior to the Balance Sheet date; the probability of this default resulting in possession or write-
off; and the estimated subsequent loss incurred.  These key assumptions are based on observed data trends and are
updated on a regular basis within agreed methodology to ensure the impairment allowance is entirely representative of the
current portfolio.  The accuracy of the impairment calculation would, therefore, be affected by unanticipated changes to the
economic situation and assumptions which differ from actual outcomes.  To the extent that house prices were to change by
+/- 10%, the residential impairment allowance would be an estimated £29.2m lower (2014: £34.0m) or £33.5m higher (2014:
£35.6m) respectively.

(c) Provisions
Provisions are carried in respect of certain known or forecast future expenditure as described in note 25. Where the future
payment amount is unknown, provisions are set at a level which covers the estimated number of future payments and
estimated average payment amount. Provisions are calculated using the best available information but the actual future
outcomes of items provided for may differ from expectations.

(d) Fair value calculations
For the majority of instruments carried at fair value, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices or lead
manager prices. Where these are not available, fair value is calculated using discounted cash flows applying independently
sourced market parameters including interest rates and currency rates. Other factors are also considered, such as
counterparty credit quality and liquidity.  Management must use judgement to arrive at estimates where not all necessary
data can be externally sourced or where factors specific to the Group’s holdings need to be considered. The accuracy of the
fair value calculations may, therefore, be affected by unexpected market movements or variations in actual outcomes when
compared to estimates and assumptions used for modelling purposes.  For example, if management were to use a
tightening in the credit spread of 10 basis points, the fair value of derivatives would increase from the reported fair values by
£17.1m (2014: £8.2m).
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3.  Net interest income

12 months to
 31 Mar 2015

£m

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

£m
Interest receivable and similar income
On secured loans 738.0 1,005.4
On investment securities and deposits 18.9 33.3
Total interest receivable and similar income 756.9 1,038.7

Interest expense and similar charges
On amounts due to banks and HM Treasury (183.9) (418.8)
State guarantee fee* (31.2) (46.9)
On debt securities and other (64.2) (61.1)
Total interest expense and similar charges (279.3) (526.8)

Net interest income 477.6 511.9

Average balances
Interest-earning assets ('IEA') 31,746 35,021
Financed by:
- interest-bearing funding 10,162 13,619
- interest-free funding** 21,584 21,402

Average rates: % %
- gross yield on IEA 2.38 2.38
- cost of interest-bearing funding (2.44) (2.83)

Interest spread (0.06) (0.45)
State guarantee fee* (0.10) (0.11)
Contribution of interest-free funding ** 1.66 1.73
Net interest margin on average IEA 1.50 1.17

Average Bank Base Rate 0.50 0.50
Average 1-month LIBOR 0.50 0.49
Average 3-month LIBOR 0.55 0.51

*  At the time of the nationalisation of B&B, HM Treasury provided guarantees with regard to certain wholesale borrowings and derivative transactions
existing at that time.  The amount of this fee is dependent on balances outstanding, and hence it is included within 'interest expense and similar
charges'. The cost of interest-bearing funding is shown excluding the state guarantee fee.

**  Interest-free funding is calculated as an average over the financial period and includes the Statutory Debt and share capital and reserves.

Total interest receivable and similar income includes interest accrued on individually impaired assets of £13.1m (2014:
£22.3m).

4.  Net realised gains less losses on investment securities

Net realised gains less losses on investment securities recognised in the Income Statement comprised the following:

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

£m £m

Net realised gains on available-for-sale instruments 4.5 11.6
Total net realised gains on investment securities 4.5 11.6
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5.  Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments and hedge ineffectiveness

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Net gain/(loss) in fair value:
- translation gains/(losses) on underlying instruments 12.2 (16.4)
- fair value movements on derivatives which are economic hedges but are not in
hedge accounting relationships 11.3 (10.3)

Unrealised fair value movements 23.5 (26.7)

Net gains on fair value hedging instruments 200.2 126.0
Net losses on fair value hedged items attributable to hedged risk (216.6) (123.2)
Hedge adjustment release (51.4) (9.1)
Net hedge ineffectiveness losses (67.8) (6.3)
Total (44.3) (33.0)

Following reassessment of the lifetime mortgage portfolio there has been a release of deferred adjustments pertaining to
hedged risk, reflecting a proportional reduction in lifetime mortgage balances.

6.  Administrative expenses

Employees of B&B provide services to NRAM, UKAR and UKARcs. NRAM, UKAR and UKARcs had no direct employees
during the periods presented.

The monthly average number of persons employed by B&B during the period was as follows:

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

For the period Number Number
Average headcount:
Full time 1,710 1,830
Part time 411 418
Total employed 2,121 2,248
Total average full time equivalent 1,993 2,111

The full time equivalent is based on the average hours worked by employees in the period.

The number of persons employed by B&B at the end of the period was as follows:
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

Number Number
Full time 1,648 1,741
Part time 430 401
Total employed 2,078 2,142
Total full time equivalent headcount 1,949 2,014

Staff numbers include Executive but not Non-Executive Directors.

In addition to the permanent staff above, the B&B Group had engaged a full time equivalent of 155 temporary staff and
specialist contractors at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: 194).

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m
The Group's aggregate costs of permanent staff were as follows:
Wages and salaries 58.6 71.3
Social security costs 5.9 7.4
Defined benefit pension costs (see note 24d) (0.6) 2.4
Defined contribution pension costs (see note 24b) 4.1 4.2
Other retirement benefit costs (see note 24c) 0.4 0.6
Total staff costs 68.4 85.9
IT costs 33.2 60.8
Outsourced and professional services 14.9 22.6
Depreciation and amortisation (see notes 17 and 18) 15.7 18.4
Other administrative expenses 33.3 35.8

165.5 223.5
Management recharge to NRAM/UKARcs (80.8) (110.0)
Total administrative expenses 84.7 113.5
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6.  Administrative expenses (continued)

Auditors’ remuneration

The following costs are included within administrative expenses:

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Fees payable to Company auditors for the statutory audit of the B&B Company
and Group Financial Statements 0.2 0.2
Fees payable to Company auditors and their associates for other services:
- the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.1
- audit-related assurance services 0.1 0.1

Total 0.4 0.4

Amounts shown in the above analysis are exclusive of VAT.

No separate disclosure has been provided of fees payable in respect of the Company as the consolidated Financial
Statements are required to disclose these fees on a consolidated basis as shown in the above table.

7. (Loss)/gain on repurchase of own liabilities

* The other net gains and losses were principally release of deferred coupons and hedge adjustments, less accelerated amortisation of the
discounting effect of deferral of coupons and fees.

In January 2015, the Company bought back the majority of the subordinated liabilities in issue (see note 26). In June 2014,
the Company also bought back certain Covered Bonds (see note 22).

The losses and gains on repurchases of subordinated liabilities and Covered Bonds are reported in the Income Statement
as these instruments are accounted for as liabilities.

12 months to 31 March 2015
Subordinated

liabilities
Covered

 Bonds
Total Income

Statement losses
£m £m £m

Principal amount of liabilities repurchased 121.6 208.7 330.3
Amount paid to repurchase liabilities (213.5) (128.8) (342.3)
Other net gains/(losses) resulting from the repurchase* 41.0 (79.3) (38.3)
(Loss)/gain on repurchase of own liabilities (50.9) 0.6 (50.3)

15 months to 31 March 2014
Subordinated

 liabilities
Covered

Bonds
Total Income

Statement gains
£m £m £m

Principal amount of liabilities repurchased 5.3 - 5.3
Amount paid to repurchase liabilities (3.2) - (3.2)
Other net gains resulting from the repurchase* 0.8 - 0.8
Gain on repurchase of own liabilities 2.9 - 2.9
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8.  Taxation

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

The tax charge for the period comprises: £m £m

Current tax:
- on profit for the period (75.0) (57.0)
- adjustments in respect of prior periods 3.7 3.3

Total current tax (71.3) (53.7)

Deferred tax (see note 15):
- origination and reversal of temporary differences (12.7) (20.1)
- change in rate on deferred tax items - 1.1

Total deferred tax (12.7) (19.0)
Total taxation charge per the Income Statement (84.0) (72.7)

The following tax amounts have been (charged)/credited to equity: 12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Current tax:
- relating to available-for-sale investments (0.2) (2.6)

Deferred tax:
- relating to cash flow hedge reserve 3.5 11.7
- relating to retirement benefit remeasurements (12.2) (6.2)

Net (charge)/credit to equity (8.9) 2.9

There was no foreign tax charged in the year (2014: £nil).

The tax charge on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard
weighted average rate of UK corporation tax of 21.0% (2014: 23.2%) as follows:

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Profit before taxation 413.4 319.1

Tax calculated at rate of 21.0% (2014: 23.2%) (86.8) (74.0)

Effects of:
- change in rate on deferred tax items - 1.1
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes (0.6) (1.7)
- adjustments in respect of prior periods 3.4 1.9
Total taxation charge for the period (84.0) (72.7)

Taxation appropriately reflects changes in tax rates which had been substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date, as
detailed in note 15.
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9.  Investment securities

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Available-for-sale securities 223.2 378.3 223.2 378.3
Investment securities held as loans and
receivables

- - 300.5 300.5

Total 223.2 378.3 523.7 678.8

In the Balance Sheet the carrying values of impaired assets are presented net of the impairment allowances shown in note
10.

Net impairment release on investment securities for the period comprised:
Group

12 months to 15 months to
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Net impairment reversals on available-for-sale securities 2.0 13.9
Total net impairment release 2.0 13.9

(a) Available-for-sale securities

31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014
Group and Company £m £m
At fair value:
- listed 223.2 378.3
Total 223.2 378.3

The movement in available-for-sale securities was as follows:

Group and Company
12 months to

31 Mar 2015
15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m
At start of period 378.3 623.9
Disposals (sales and redemptions) (149.0) (254.4)
Exchange differences (7.3) 0.2
Net gains on changes in fair value 1.2 8.6
At end of period 223.2 378.3

The net gains on changes in fair value include net impairment reversals.

(b) Investment securities held as loans and receivables
Group Company

31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014
£m £m £m £m

Carrying value - - 300.5 300.5
Fair value - - 300.5 300.5

Unlisted - - 300.5 300.5
Total - - 300.5 300.5
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10.  Wholesale assets

The assets in the following tables are of a wholesale nature as opposed to individual customer assets.  The credit and
concentration risk characteristics of these portfolios should, therefore, be considered together.

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 1,118.7 1,045.6 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 1,594.9 1,554.5 652.8 446.4
Investment securities (see note 9) 223.2 378.3 523.7 678.8
Total 2,863.7 3,051.5 2,222.1 2,243.9

The Group and Company had no collateral or other credit enhancements in respect of these assets.

Balances with the Bank of England represent cash liquidity held on account which earns Bank Base Rate.

(a) Credit risk
Impairment is set out in the table below:

Group Balances with the
Bank of England

Cash at bank
and in hand

Available-for-
sale securities Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 1,045.6 1,594.9 125.4 2,765.9
Impaired - - 251.9 251.9

1,045.6 1,594.9 377.3 3,017.8
Provisions - - (154.1) (154.1)
Total 1,045.6 1,594.9 223.2 2,863.7

Group Balances with the
Bank of England

Cash at bank
and in hand

Available-for-
sale securities Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 1,118.7 1,554.5 238.8 2,912.0
Impaired - - 274.3 274.3

1,118.7 1,554.5 513.1 3,186.3
Provisions - - (134.8) (134.8)
Total 1,118.7 1,554.5 378.3 3,051.5

Company Balances with the
Bank of England

Cash at bank
 and in hand

Available-for-
sale securities

Investment
securities held

as loans and
receivables Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 1,045.6 652.8 125.4 300.5 2,124.3
Impaired - - 251.9 - 251.9

1,045.6 652.8 377.3 300.5 2,376.2
Provisions - - (154.1) - (154.1)
Total 1,045.6 652.8 223.2 300.5 2,222.1

Company Balances with the
Bank of England

Cash at bank
 and in hand

Available-for-
sale securities

Investment
securities held

as loans and
receivables Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 1,118.7 446.4 238.8 300.5 2,104.4
Impaired - - 274.3 - 274.3

1,118.7 446.4 513.1 300.5 2,378.7
Provisions - - (134.8) - (134.8)
Total 1,118.7 446.4 378.3 300.5 2,243.9
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10.  Wholesale assets (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
The credit quality of wholesale assets by reference to credit ratings is set out in the table below:

Company
AAA AA A BBB to B

  CCC and
below

At 31 March 2015 £m % % % %     %

Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - 100 - - -
Cash at bank and in hand 652.8 - 25 33 42 -
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 223.2 31 3 54 1 11
- loans and receivables* 300.5 - 100 - - -

Total investment securities 523.7 12 59 23 1 5
Total 2,222.1 3 69 15 12 1

Additional information in respect of impairment of investment securities is provided in note 9.

* These notes are issued by the Company’s subsidiary undertaking Mortgage Express.  The notes are unrated, but as Mortgage Express is
supported by the Company and the Company has the support of HM Treasury, these notes have been shown in the table above as having
the same rating as the Bank of England.

Group
AAA AA A BBB to B

  CCC and
      below

At 31 March 2015 £m % % % %   %

Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - 100 - - -
Cash at bank and in hand 1,594.9 - 70 13 17 -
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 223.2 31 3 54 1 11

Total 2,863.7 2 75 12 10 1

Group
AAA AA A BBB to B

  CCC and
below

At 31 March 2014 £m % % % % %

Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.7 100 - - - -
Cash at bank and in hand 1,554.5 - 79 12 9 -
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 378.3 36 1 41 5 17

Total 3,051.5 41 40 12 5 2

Company
AAA AA A BBB to B

  CCC and
below

At 31 March 2014 £m          % % % %           %

Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.7 100 - - - -
Cash at bank and in hand 446.4 - 25 44 31 -
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 378.3 36 1 41 5 17
- loans and receivables* 300.5 100 - - - -

Total investment securities 678.8 64 - 23 3 10
Total 2,243.9 69 5 16 7 3
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10.  Wholesale assets (continued)

(b) Concentration risk
Wholesale assets are analysed by geographical region at their carrying amounts in the tables below:

Group UK Europe US Other
countries

Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m

Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - - 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand 1,539.1 15.7 40.1 - 1,594.9

Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 115.7 93.8 7.2 6.5 223.2

Total 2,700.4 109.5 47.3 6.5 2,863.7

Group UK Europe US Other
countries

Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m

Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.7 - - - 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 1,554.5 - - - 1,554.5

Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 146.0 202.6 7.4 22.3 378.3

Total 2,819.2 202.6 7.4 22.3 3,051.5

Company UK Europe US Other
countries

Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m

Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - - 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand 597.0 15.7 40.1 - 652.8

Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 115.7 93.8 7.2 6.5 223.2
- investment securities held as loans and receivables 300.5 - - - 300.5

Total investment securities 416.2 93.8 7.2 6.5 523.7
Total 2058.8 109.5 47.3 6.5 2,222.1

Company UK Europe US Other
countries

Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m

Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.7 - - - 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 446.4 - - - 446.4

Investment securities:
- available-for-sale securities 146.0 202.6 7.4 22.3 378.3
- investment securities held as loans and receivables 300.5 - - - 300.5

Total investment securities 446.5 202.6 7.4 22.3 678.8
Total 2,011.6 202.6 7.4 22.3 2,243.9

At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 the Group and Company held no investment securities issued by the governments of
Portugal, the Republic of Ireland, Italy, Greece or Spain.
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11.  Loans to customers

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Residential mortgages 26,916.1 29,758.0 20,292.6 22,512.3
Commercial loans 399.6 454.8 399.6 454.8
Total secured loans 27,315.7 30,212.8 20,692.2 22,967.1
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 6,209.7 7,004.7
Total 27,315.7 30,212.8 26,901.9 29,971.8

Residential mortgages include all of the Group's buy-to-let loans.  Commercial loans comprise loans secured on commercial
properties.

All of the Group's loans to customers are to UK customers.

Balances include accounting adjustments in respect of provisioning requirements.

Loans to customers include loans amounting to £16,554.4m (2014: £17,974.8m) for the Group and Company which have
been sold to bankruptcy remote SPVs whereby substantially all of the risks and rewards of the portfolio are retained by the
Group/Company.  Accordingly, all of these loans are retained on the Group's/Company's Balance Sheets.  Further details
are provided in note 22.

Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging amounting to £414.5m (2014: £223.0m) relate to interest-rate derivatives
designated in a fair value portfolio hedge relationship.

Loans to customers and redemptions comprise the following product types:

Group Balances Redemptions Balances Redemptions
At 31 March

2015
12 months to

31 Mar 2015
At 31 March

2014
15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m % £m £m % £m
Residential mortgages
Buy-to-let 18,497.7 69 (1,072.2) 19,604.3 66 (981.5)
Self Cert 5,591.8 21 (427.0) 5,983.6 20 (400.6)
Standard and other 2,826.6 10 (361.9) 4,170.1 14 (474.6)
Total residential mortgages 26,916.1 100 (1,861.1) 29,758.0 100 (1,856.7)
Residential loans 26,916.1 99 (1,861.1) 29,758.0 98 (1,856.7)
Commercial loans 399.6 1 (58.6) 454.8 2 (88.7)
Total 27,315.7 100 (1,919.7) 30,212.8 100 (1,945.4)

Company Balances Redemptions Balances Redemptions
At 31 March

2015
15 months to

31 Mar 2015
At 31 March

2014
15 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m % £m £m % £m
Residential mortgages
Buy-to-let 14,857.2

4,27

73 (867.1) 15,771.7 70 (782.7)

(224Self Cert 4,270.8 21 (333.7) 4,650.4 21 (310.2)
Standard and other 1,164.6 6 (200.5) 2,090.2 9 (300.1)
Total residential mortgages 20,292.6 100 (1,401.3) 22,512.3 100 (1,393.0)
Residential loans 20,292.6 98 (1,401.3) 22,512.3 98 (1,393.0)
Commercial loans 399.6 2 (58.6) 454.8 2 (88.7)
Total 20,692.2 100 (1,459.9) 22,967.1 100 (1,481.7)

Redemptions comprise full redemptions, voluntary partial redemptions and cash receipts from possessions but exclude
overpayments and regular monthly payments.

At 31 March 2015, 66% (2014: 64%) of the Group's residential mortgage accounts (excluding buy-to-let) held by 40,667
(2014: 53,073) customers were 'interest only' with 77% (2014: 70%) of these having more than ten years until maturity.

In October 2014 the Group sold a portfolio of standard mortgages for £1.0bn (Company: £647.8m) realising a profit on sale
of £15.3m (Company: £10.3m).  This sale is excluded from the redemptions disclosed in the above table.
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12.  Impairment on loans to customers

Allowances for credit losses against loans to customers have been made as follows:

Group On residential
mortgages

On commercial
loans Total

2014/15 £m £m £m
At 1 April 2014 602.8 63.0 665.8
Movements during the year:
- write-offs (62.7) (1.5) (64.2)
- loan impairment credit (40.6) (0.7) (41.3)
Net movements during the year (103.3) (2.2) (105.5)
At 31 March 2015 499.5 60.8 560.3
The Income Statement credit comprises:
- loan impairment credit (40.6) (0.7) (41.3)
- recoveries net of costs (38.7) - (38.7)
Total Income Statement credit (79.3) (0.7) (80.0)

Group On residential
mortgages

On commercial
loans Total

2013/14 £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 637.6 50.3 687.9
Movements during the period:
- write-offs (134.5) - (134.5)
- loan impairment charge 99.7 12.7 112.4
Net movements during the period (34.8) 12.7 (22.1)
At 31 March 2014 602.8 63.0 665.8
The Income Statement charge comprises:
- loan impairment charge 99.7 12.7 112.4
- recoveries net of costs (33.5) (0.1) (33.6)
Total Income Statement charge 66.2 12.6 78.8

Company
On residential

mortgages
On commercial

loans Total
2014/15 £m £m £m
At 1 April 2014 327.0 63.0 390.0
Movements during the year:
- write-offs (30.6) (1.5) (32.1)
- loan impairment credit (43.0) (0.7) (43.7)
Net movements during the year (73.6) (2.2) (75.8)
At 31 March 2015 253.4 60.8 314.2
The Income Statement credit comprises:
- loan impairment credit (43.0) (0.7) (43.7)
- recoveries net of costs (16.2) - (16.2)
Total Income Statement credit (59.2) (0.7) (59.9)

Company On residential
mortgages

On commercial
loans Total

2013/14 £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 396.6 50.3 446.9
Movements during the period
- write-offs (78.4) - (78.4)
- loan impairment charge 8.8 12.7 21.5
Net movements during the period (69.6) 12.7 (56.9)
At 31 March 2014 327.0 63.0 390.0
The Income Statement credit comprises:
- loan impairment charge 8.8 12.7 21.5
- recoveries net of costs (17.8) (0.1) (17.9)
Total Income Statement (credit)/charge (9.0) 12.6 3.6

In respect of lifetime mortgages the allowances include an additional provision reflecting estimated future impairment up to
redemption. In the Balance Sheet the carrying values of loans to customers are presented net of these allowances.
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers

In respect of loans to residential customers, the Group and Company hold collateral in the form of mortgages over
residential properties. The fair value of this collateral was as follows:

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 40,113.9 41,680.1 30,870.7 32,399.3
Past due but not impaired 1,334.5 1,446.0 888.7 972.2
Impaired 247.8 265.9 145.8 142.8
Total 41,696.2 43,392.0 31,905.2 33,514.3

If the collateral amount on each individual loan was capped at the amount of the balance outstanding and any surplus of
collateral values over balances outstanding ignored, the fair value of collateral held would be as follows:

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 26,125.9 28,724.5 19,736.6 21,823.7
Past due but not impaired 966.2 1,135.2 618.3 733.2
Impaired 198.3 232.7 112.6 122.0
Total 27,290.4 30,092.4 20,467.5 22,678.9
The impaired balances above include the following carrying
amount of assets in possession, capped at the balance
outstanding 42.9 48.8 26.9 27.4

The fair value of the collateral is estimated by taking the most recent valuation of the property and adjusting for house price
inflation or deflation up to the Balance Sheet date.

The indexed loan to value ('LTV') of residential loan balances, weighted by loan balance, falls into the following ranges:

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

% % % %
To 50% 9.9 7.9 9.8 7.9
50% to 75% 39.7 26.3 43.2 28.7
75% to 100% 45.2 53.3 42.7 53.4
Over 100% 5.2 12.5 4.3 10.0
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

For the Group, the average indexed loan to value based on a simple average is 65.8% (31 Mar 2014: 70.0%) and on a
weighted average is 74.1% (31 Mar 2014: 80.3%).
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers (continued)

Group At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
Residential
mortgages

Commercial
loans Total Residential

mortgages
Commercial

loans Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Neither past due nor impaired 26,223.3 304.4 26,527.7 28,937.8 291.2 29,229.0
Past due but not impaired:

- less than 3 months 650.3 - 650.3 772.2 - 772.2
- 3 to 6 months 196.6 - 196.6 234.6 - 234.6
- over 6 months 129.6 - 129.6 150.3 - 150.3

Impaired 215.8 156.0 371.8 265.9 226.6 492.5
27,415.6 460.4 27,876.0 30,360.8 517.8 30,878.6

Impairment allowances (499.5) (60.8) (560.3) (602.8) (63.0) (665.8)
Loans to customers net of
impairment allowances 26,916.1 399.6 27,315.7 29,758.0 454.8 30,212.8
Impairment allowances:

- individual 46.1 60.8 106.9 83.0 63.0 146.0
- collective 453.4 - 453.4 519.8 - 519.8

Total impairment allowances 499.5 60.8 560.3 602.8 63.0 665.8

Company At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
Residential
mortgages

Commercial
loans Total Residential

mortgages
Commercial

loans Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Neither past due nor impaired 19,798.1 304.4 20,102.5 21,954.7 291.2 22,245.9
Past due but not impaired:

- less than 3 months 427.9 - 427.9 516.5 - 516.5
- 3 to 6 months 120.8 - 120.8 141.7 - 141.7
- over 6 months 74.4 - 74.4 87.3 - 87.3

Impaired 124.8 156.0 280.8 139.1 226.6 365.7
20,546.0 460.4 21,006.4 22,839.3 517.8 23,357.1

Impairment allowances (253.4) (60.8) (314.2) (327.0) (63.0) (390.0)
Loans to customers net of
impairment allowances 20,292.6 399.6 20,692.2 22,512.3 454.8 22,967.1
Impairment allowances:

- individual 23.9 60.8 84.7 42.4 63.0 105.4
- collective 229.5 - 229.5 284.6 - 284.6

Total impairment allowances 253.4 60.8 314.2 327.0 63.0 390.0

The above table includes balances within 'neither past due nor impaired' which would have been shown as past due or
impaired other than due to renegotiation; these were loans where arrears were capitalised during the period. These loans
amounted to £1.1m (2014: £5.0m) for the Group and £1.0m (2014: £1.0m) for the Company. A loan is eligible for
capitalisation of arrears only once the borrower has complied with stringent terms for a set period.
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers (continued)

Arrears and possessions on residential mortgages
Arrears and possessions are monitored for the Group as a whole and also split by type of product.

At 31 March
2015

At 31 March
2014

Arrears 3 months and over
Number of cases No. 3,144 3,739
Proportion of total cases % 1.37 1.43
Asset value £m 440.0 528.7
Proportion of book % 1.64 1.78
Total value of payments overdue £m 12.5 15.3
Proportion of total book % 0.05 0.05

Possessions
Number of cases No. 381 435
Proportion of total cases % 0.17 0.17
Asset value £m 54.6 63.8
Proportion of book % 0.20 0.21
Total value of payments overdue £m 2.4 3.2
Proportion of total book % 0.01 0.01
New possessions * No. 958 1,987

Total arrears 3 months and over and possessions
Number of cases No. 3,525 4,174
Proportion of total cases % 1.54 1.60
Asset value £m 494.6 592.5
Proportion of book % 1.84 1.99
Total value of payments overdue £m 14.9 18.5
Proportion of total book % 0.06 0.06

In respect of all arrears (including those which are less than 3 months in arrears) together with possessions, the total
value of payments overdue was:

Payments overdue
Total value of payments overdue £m 19.3 23.7
Proportion of total book % 0.07 0.08

Loan impairment provision
As % of residential balances % 1.82 1.99

* New possessions for the 12 months to 31 March 2015 and the 15 months to 31 March 2014.
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers (continued)

Analysis of residential mortgages 3 months and over in arrears by product

At 31 March
2015

At 31 March
2014

Buy-to-let
  Number of cases No. 1,185 1,514
  Proportion of total cases % 0.74 0.90
  Asset value £m 153.1 202.4
  Proportion of book % 0.83 1.03
  Total value of payments overdue £m 4.2 5.7
  Proportion of total book % 0.02 0.03

Self Cert
  Number of cases No. 1,048 1,166
  Proportion of total cases % 2.76 2.86
  Asset value £m 179.0 202.3
  Proportion of book % 3.20 3.38
  Total value of payments overdue £m 4.9 5.4
  Proportion of total book % 0.09 0.09

Standard and other
  Number of cases No. 911 1,059
  Proportion of total cases % 2.94 2.09
  Asset value £m 108.0 124.0
  Proportion of book % 3.82 2.97
  Total value of payments overdue £m 3.5 4.2
  Proportion of total book % 0.12 0.10

14.  Investments in Group undertakings

Company
12 months to

31 March 2015
15 months to

31 March 2014
£m £m

At start of period 175.0 991.2
Repayment of capital - (816.2)
At end of period 175.0 175.0

Certain subsidiaries returned surplus capital to the Company in 2014. The Directors consider the value of investments to be
supported by their underlying assets.  The Company's principal subsidiary at 31 March 2015 is detailed below.

Mortgage Express is a directly held, unlimited company.

Class of shares
held Interest Nature of business

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Mortgage Express Ordinary 100% Mortgage administration UK
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14.  Investments in Group undertakings (continued)

The following companies are also fully consolidated into the Group Financial Statements; all operate in their country of
incorporation.  All are wholly-owned.

Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation Class of shares held

Bradford & Bingley Homeloans Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary
Bradford & Bingley Investments Non-trading UK Ordinary
Bradford & Bingley Mortgage Management Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary
FFM Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary
Finance for Mortgages Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary
HSMS Non-trading UK Ordinary
Leamington Mortgage Corporation Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary
Mortgage Express (No. 2) Non-trading UK Ordinary
Mortgage Express Holdings Non-trading UK Ordinary
Scotlife Homeloans (No. 2) Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary
Silhouette Mortgages Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary

The Directors consider the value of investments in Group undertakings to be supported by their underlying assets.

SPVs

The following entities are SPVs established in connection with the Group's securitisation and secured funding programmes
(see note 22). The Company has no contractual arrangement or intention to provide additional financial or other support to
these SPVs. Although the Company has no direct or indirect ownership interest in these entities and no rights to vote or to
receive dividends, they are regarded as subsidiaries. This is because they are principally engaged in providing a source of
long-term funding to the Group which, in substance, has the rights to all benefits from the activities of the SPVs. They are,
therefore, effectively controlled by the Group. The Company is a member of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP.

Nature of business
Country of incorporation

and operation

Aire Valley Funding 1 Limited Holder of interest in loans UK
Aire Valley Funding 2 Limited Non-trading UK
Aire Valley Funding 3 plc Non-trading UK
Aire Valley Holdings Limited Holding company UK
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-2 plc Issue of securitised notes UK
Aire Valley Mortgages 2008-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK
Aire Valley PECOH Limited Post-enforcement call option holder UK
Aire Valley Trustee Limited Mortgage trustee Jersey
Aire Valley Warehousing 1 Limited Non-trading UK
Aire Valley Warehousing 2 Limited Non-trading UK
Aire Valley Warehousing 3 Limited Non-trading UK
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP Mortgage funding UK
Designated Member No.1 Limited Member of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP Jersey
Designated Member No.2 Limited Member of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP UK
Ivybond Holdings Limited Holding company Jersey

Summarised financial information for material SPVs

Set out below is summarised financial information for each material SPV:

Net assets Profit after tax
At 31 March

 2015
At 31 March

 2014
12 months to

31 March 2015
15 months to

31 March 2014
£m £m £m £m

Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc 3.2 2.9 0.3 (1.2)
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc 1.3 0.8 0.5 (0.4)
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc 13.8 13.9 (0.1) 1.9
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc 2.8 3.0 (0.2) 0.4
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15.  Deferred taxation

The net deferred taxation liability is attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net
Group 31 Mar 2015

£m
31 Mar 2014

£m
31 Mar 2015

£m
31 Mar 2014

£m
31 Mar 2015

£m
31 Mar 2014

£m
Changes in accounting basis on
adoption of IFRS - 1.5 (0.1) (2.3) - (0.8)
Cash flow hedges 0.1 - (10.8) (14.3) (10.8) (14.3)
Accelerated tax depreciation - - (3.1) (2.4) (3.1) (2.4)
Available-for-sale reserve and fair value - - (3.5) (5.2) (3.5) (5.2)
Employee benefits - 5.3 (14.5) - (14.5) 5.3
Taxation value of losses carried forward - 6.9 - - - 6.9

0.1 13.7 (32.0) (24.2) (31.9) (10.5)
Offset (0.1) (24.2) 0.1 24.2 - -
Total - (10.5) (31.9) - (31.9) (10.5)

Assets Liabilities Net
Company 31 Mar 2015

£m
31 Mar 2014

£m
31 Mar 2015

£m
31 Mar 2014

£m
31 Mar 2015

£m
31 Mar 2014

£m
Changes in accounting basis on
adoption of IFRS - 1.3 (0.1) (2.3) - (1.0)
Cash flow hedges 0.1 - (10.8) (14.3) (10.8) (14.3)
Accelerated tax depreciation - - (3.1) (2.4) (3.1) (2.4)
Employee benefits - 5.3 (14.5) - (14.5) 5.3

0.1 6.6 (28.5) (19.0) (28.4) (12.4)
Offset (0.1) (6.6) 0.1 6.6 - -
Total - - (28.4) (12.4) (28.4) (12.4)

The Group and Company had no deferred tax assets unrecognised at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: £nil).

The movements in the Group's temporary differences during the year and previous period were as follows:

Group At 1 April
2014

Recognised
in income

Recognised
in equity

At 31 March
 2015

£m £m £m £m
Changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (0.8) 0.8 - -
Cash flow hedges (14.3) - 3.5 (10.8)
Accelerated tax depreciation (2.4) (0.7) - (3.1)
Available-for-sale reserve and fair value (5.2) 1.7 - (3.5)
Employee benefits 5.3 (7.6) (12.2) (14.5)
Taxation value of losses carried forward 6.9 (6.9) - -
Total (10.5) (12.7) (8.7) (31.9)

Group
At 1 January

2013
Recognised

in income
Recognised

in equity
At 31 March

 2014
£m £m £m £m

Changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (1.6) 0.8 - (0.8)
Cash flow hedges (26.0) - 11.7 (14.3)
Accelerated tax depreciation (0.4) (2.0) - (2.4)
Available-for-sale reserve and fair value (8.6) 3.4 - (5.2)
Employee benefits 17.1 (5.6) (6.2) 5.3
Taxation value of losses carried forward 22.5 (15.6) - 6.9
Total 3.0 (19.0) 5.5 (10.5)
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15. Deferred taxation (continued)

The movements in the Company's temporary differences during the year and previous period were as follows:

Company At 1 April
2014

Recognised
in income

Recognised
in equity

At 31 March
2015

£m £m £m £m
Changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (1.0) 1.0 - -
Cash flow hedges (14.3) - 3.5 (10.8)
Accelerated tax depreciation (2.4) (0.7) - (3.1)
Employee benefits 5.3 (7.6) (12.2) (14.5)
Total (12.4) (7.3) (8.7) (28.4)

Company
At 1 January

2013
Recognised

 in income
Recognised

 in equity
At 31 March

2014
£m £m £m £m

Changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (1.9) 0.9 - (1.0)
Cash flow hedges (26.0) - 11.7 (14.3)
Accelerated tax depreciation (0.5) (1.9) - (2.4)
Employee benefits 17.1 (5.6) (6.2) 5.3
Total (11.3) (6.6) 5.5 (12.4)

The announced UK corporation tax rate reduction to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015 has been reflected in the 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014 deferred tax balances.

16.  Other assets

Group Company
At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014 At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Prepayments and accrued income 7.5 6.4 7.5 5.6
Other 14.5 30.0 14.5 29.9
Total 22.0 36.4 22.0 35.5

Other assets include £14.2m (31 Mar 2014: £19.2m) due from NRAM.

17. Property, plant and equipment

Group
Land and
buildings

Plant, equipment,
fixtures, fittings

and vehicles Total
2014/15 £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2014 23.1 70.2 93.3
Additions - 4.0 4.0
Disposals (16.4) (16.8) (33.2)
At 31 March 2015 6.7 57.4 64.1

Depreciation
At 1 April 2014 15.4 56.7 72.1
Charged in year 0.2 4.4 4.6
Disposals (11.5) (16.8) (28.3)
At 31 March 2015 4.1 44.3 48.4

Net book amount:
At 1 April 2014 7.7 13.5 21.2
At 31 March 2015 2.6 13.1 15.7
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17.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Group
Land and
buildings

Plant, equipment,
fixtures, fittings and

vehicles Total
2013/14 £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2013 23.1 69.2 92.3
Additions - 1.8 1.8
Disposals - (0.8) (0.8)
At 31 March 2014 23.1 70.2 93.3

Depreciation
At 1 January 2013 14.9 52.6 67.5
Charged in period 0.5 4.9 5.4
Disposals - (0.8) (0.8)
At 31 March 2014 15.4 56.7 72.1

Net book amount:
At 1 January 2013 8.2 16.6 24.8
At 31 March 2014 7.7 13.5 21.2

At 31 March 2015, work in progress of £4.0m (2014: £nil) has been capitalised and is not being depreciated. The work in
progress relates to an IT investment programme to simplify existing infrastructure and reduce ongoing costs.

Sale proceeds from asset disposals were £14.5m (2014: £nil) resulting in a profit on sale of £9.6m (2014: £nil).  B&B’s
Crossflatts building was disposed of in a sale and leaseback transaction in October 2014.

Company
Land and
buildings

Plant, equipment,
fixtures, fittings

and vehicles Total
2014/15 £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2014 23.1 70.2 93.3
Additions - 4.0 4.0
Disposals (16.4) (16.8) (33.2)
At 31 March 2015 6.7 57.4 64.1

Depreciation
At 1 April 2014 15.4 56.7 72.1
Charged in year 0.2 4.4 4.6
Disposals (11.5) (16.8) (28.3)
At 31 March 2015 4.1 44.3 48.4

Net book amount:
At 1 April 2014 7.7 13.5 21.2
At 31 March 2015 2.6 13.1 15.7

Company
Land and
buildings

Plant, equipment,
fixtures, fittings and

vehicles Total
2013/14 £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2013 23.1 69.2 92.3
Additions - 1.8 1.8
Disposals - (0.8) (0.8)
At 31 March 2014 23.1 70.2 93.3

Depreciation
At 1 January 2013 14.9 52.6 67.5
Charged in period 0.5 4.9 5.4
Disposals - (0.8) (0.8)
At 31 March 2014 15.4 56.7 72.1

Net book amount:
At 1 January 2013 8.2 16.6 24.8
At 31 March 2014 7.7 13.5 21.2
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17.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

At 31 March 2015, work in progress of £4.0m (2014: £nil) has been capitalised and is not being depreciated. The work in
progress relates to an IT investment programme to simplify existing infrastructure and reduce ongoing costs.

Sale proceeds from asset disposals were £14.5m (2014: £nil) resulting in a profit on sale of £9.6m (2014: £nil).  B&B’s
Crossflatts building was disposed of in a sale and leaseback transaction in October 2014.

18.  Intangible assets

Group Company
2014/15 £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2014 80.9 79.2
Additions 8.7 8.7
Disposals (5.7) (4.0)
At 31 March 2015 83.9 83.9

Amortisation
At 1 April 2014 40.8 39.1
Charged in year 11.1 11.1
Disposals (5.7) (4.0)
At 31 March 2015 46.2 46.2

Net book amount:
At 1 April 2014 40.1 40.1
At 31 March 2015 37.7 37.7

Group Company
2013/14 £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2013 74.0 72.3
Additions 6.9 6.9
At 31 March 2014 80.9 79.2

Amortisation
At 1 January 2013 27.8 26.1
Charged in period 13.0 13.0
At 31 March 2014 40.8 39.1

Net book amount:
At 1 January 2013 46.2 46.2
At 31 March 2014 40.1 40.1

Intangible assets comprise capitalised computer software systems and licences.

At 31 March 2015, work in progress of £13.8m (2014: £5.2m) has been capitalised and is not being amortised. The work in
progress relates to an IT investment programme to simplify existing infrastructure and reduce ongoing costs.

All assets disposed in the year had already been fully amortised, and no sale proceeds were received, and hence there was
no profit or loss on the sales.

19. Amounts due to banks

Group Company
At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014 At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m
Cash collateral received (see note 34) 503.6 674.2 9.8 4.1
Other - 0.1 - 0.1
Total 503.6 674.3 9.8 4.2
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20. Other deposits

Company
At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Amounts due to securitisation SPVs 2,928.3 3,315.1
Total 2,928.3 3,315.1

Amounts due to securitisation SPVs represent the beneficial interests held in mortgage portfolios by securitisation SPVs
(see note 22).  As the mortgage loans do not qualify for de-recognition from the Company's Balance Sheet, the
securitisation SPVs' beneficial interests in the mortgage portfolios are represented by a deemed loan to the Company. This
is equivalent in value to the beneficial interests in the mortgage portfolios plus associated intra-Group balances directly
relating to the beneficial interests in the mortgage portfolios.

21. Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans

Group and Company At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014
£m £m

Statutory Debt 18,416.2 18,416.2
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,547.1 4,999.1
Total 20,963.3 23,415.3

The Company has an interest-free Statutory Debt of £18,416.2m as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.  This replaced
the Group's savings-related assets and liabilities which were transferred to Banco Santander Group on 29 September 2008.
£15,654.5m of the Statutory Debt is owed to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCS'). At the time of the
nationalisation of B&B, the FSCS covered the first £35,000 per depositor; HM Treasury agreed to cover the excess over
£35,000, amounting to a total of £2,761.7m.  It is expected that the Statutory Debt will be repaid out of the cash flows
generated by B&B during its wind-down.  These cash flows will principally comprise interest and redemptions arising on
loans to customers, along with proceeds of asset sales. The redemption profile of loans to customers is uncertain; many of
these loans have contractual maturities of 25 years or more from the date of advance but experience has been that most
loans to customers redeem earlier than their contractual maturity dates.  Consequently, the timing of the repayment of the
Statutory Debt is uncertain.

The Company has an interest-bearing Working Capital Facility ('WCF') provided by HM Treasury. Since 1 August 2011 the
rate charged has been Bank of England Base Rate + 500bps and prior to that date the rate was Bank of England Base Rate
+ 150bps. HM Treasury has the option to vary the rate charged. At 31 March 2015 the Company had drawn £2,535.3m
(2014: £4,975.0m) of this facility; £2,547.1m including accrued interest (2014: £4,999.1m).  At the signing date of these
Financial Statements, HM Treasury has confirmed its intentions to continue to fund the Company as a going concern and to
enable the Company to meet its debts as and when they fall due, until at least 1 January 2017. HM Treasury has indicated
that it expects the WCF to be repaid out of the cash flows generated by B&B during its wind-down. These cash flows will
principally comprise interest and redemptions arising on loans to customers, along with proceeds of asset sales. The
redemption profile of loans to customers is uncertain; many of these loans have contractual maturities of 25 years or more
from the date of advance but experience has been that most loans to customers redeem earlier than their contractual
maturity dates. Consequently, the timing of the repayment of the WCF is uncertain.



Notes to the Financial Statements Annual Report & Accounts 2015

53

22. Debt securities in issue

Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total
Group £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2014 3,902.2 3,459.0 177.4 7,538.6
Repayments (376.5) - (138.3) (514.8)
Repurchases - (208.7) - (208.7)
Other movements (103.3) (450.3) (7.7) (561.3)
At 31 March 2015 3,422.4 2,800.0 31.4 6,253.8

Securitised assets 9,760.4 7,687.2 - 17,447.6
Reserve fund 380.0 1.4 - 381.4

Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total
Group £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2013 4,276.3 3,602.3 459.3 8,337.9
Repayments (378.5) (137.1) (276.8) (792.4)
Other movements 4.4 (6.2) (5.1) (6.9)
At 31 March 2014 3,902.2 3,459.0 177.4 7,538.6

Securitised assets 10,543.8 8,478.8 - 19,022.6
Reserve fund 380.0 1.7 - 381.7

Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total
Company £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2014 - 3,459.0 177.4 3,636.4
Repayments - - (138.3) (138.3)
Repurchases - (208.7) - (208.7)
Other movements - (450.3) (7.7) (458.0)
At 31 March 2015 - 2,800.0 31.4 2,831.4

Securitised assets - 7,687.2 - 7,687.2
Reserve fund - 1.4 - 1.4

Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total
Company £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2013 - 3,602.3 459.3 4,061.6
Repayments - (137.1) (276.8) (413.9)
Other movements - (6.2) (5.1) (11.3)
At 31 March 2014 - 3,459.0 177.4 3,636.4

Securitised assets - 8,478.8 - 8,478.8
Reserve fund - 1.7 - 1.7

Other movements comprise exchange rate movements, accrued interest and hedge accounting adjustments.

The Group issued debt securities to securitise loans to customers through SPVs and Covered Bonds and also raised
unsecured medium term funding, the amounts of which are shown above.  Certain of these have been subject to fair value
hedge designation and the carrying values of these instruments include unamortised adjustments in respect of the notes
that were hedged.

HM Treasury has provided guarantees with regard to certain wholesale borrowings of the Company; the Group pays a fee
for these guarantees as detailed in note 3.

Securitised assets represent loans to customers which have been used to securitise issued notes, including notes which are
held by other companies in the UKAR Group, and cash balances.
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22. Debt securities in issue (continued)

(a) Securitised notes
The Group's results include the results, assets and liabilities of securitisation SPVs on a line-by-line basis, none of which
qualify for de-recognition under IAS 39. Securitised assets are subject to non-recourse finance arrangements.  These
assets are primarily loans to customers which have been purchased at par from the Company, the purchase being funded
through the issue by the SPVs of mortgage-backed bonds.  The Company passes to the SPVs cash received in relation to
the securitised assets.  The SPVs use the cash to service the bonds, retain a margin specified under the terms of the issue
and return any surplus cash to the Company.  To the extent that the total cash receipts in relation to the securitised assets
are insufficient to satisfy interest and principal payments in relation to the bonds, the holders of the bonds have no recourse
against the Group. Provided that the total cash receipts in relation to the securitised assets are sufficient to satisfy interest
and principal payments in relation to the bonds, the Company bears the cost of any impairment of the securitised assets.
While the assets remain securitised, the Group may not use, sell or pledge these assets.

At 31 March 2015 the SPVs had cash deposits (including accrued interest) amounting to £1,004.0m, including collateral
deposits of £493.8m (2014: £1,151.3m, including collateral deposits of £670.1m).  These deposits (excluding the collateral
deposits) are restricted in use to the servicing of the debt securities issued by the SPVs and other legal obligations.

Many of the securitised notes are issued in foreign currencies.  These are translated into sterling at the exchange rates
prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. All issuances in foreign currency are subject to cross-currency swaps that provide the
amounts of foreign currency required to repay the notes in exchange for an amount of sterling fixed at the issue of the note,
thereby protecting against foreign exchange risk.  The value of the loans assigned to the bankruptcy-remote SPVs exceeds
the value of sterling required under the foreign exchange swaps and, therefore, the debt securities in issue are more than
covered by loan assets allocated for this purpose.

On 10 May 2012 a Non-Asset Trigger Event (as defined in the Offering Circular) occurred within the Group's Master Trust
securitisation structure, due to the aggregate current balance of loans comprising the Trust Property falling below the
minimum trust size of £10.7bn.  The impact of this event is to change the order of priority of the Funding 1 Available
Principal Receipts.  As a result of the Non-Asset Trigger Event, all principal receipts from customers are allocated to
Funding 1 and will continue to be so allocated until all holders of Aire Valley residential mortgage-backed securities have
been repaid in full if sufficient funds are ultimately available. The principal is then passed to the Issuers based on their
respective notes outstanding. Each Issuer then utilises this principal to pay down notes pro-rata and sequentially by class.
The timing of future redemptions will be dependent on the availability of funds.

(b) Covered Bonds
Included within loans to customers are mortgage advances and other assets which provide security to issues of Covered
Bonds made by the Company, amounting to £2,800.0m (2014: £3,459.0m).  The Company passes to Bradford & Bingley
Covered Bonds LLP cash received in relation to the securitised assets. Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP uses cash
receipts to service the bonds and returns any surplus cash to the Company. The Company bears the cost of any
impairment of the securitised assets.  While the assets remain securitised, the Group may not use, sell or pledge these
assets.

Many of the Covered Bonds are issued in foreign currencies.  These are translated into sterling at the exchange rates
prevailing at the Balance Sheet date.  All issuances in foreign currency are subject to cross-currency swaps that provide the
amounts of foreign currency required to repay the Bonds in exchange for an amount of sterling fixed at the issue of the
Bond, thereby protecting against foreign exchange risk.  The value of the loans assigned to the bankruptcy-remote Covered
Bonds exceeds the value of sterling required under the foreign exchange swaps and, therefore, the Covered Bonds in issue
are more than covered by loan assets allocated for this purpose.

In June 2014 the Company bought back certain Covered Bonds (see note 7). No such purchases were made in 2013/14.

(c) Other debt securities in issue
Other debt securities in issue comprise notes issued under the Company's Medium Term Notes programme.

23. Other liabilities

Group Company
At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014 At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m
Accruals and deferred income 56.3 57.7 55.5 57.7
Other 36.2 47.5 34.5 43.6
Total 92.5 105.2 90.0 101.3
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24.  Retirement benefit obligations

(a) Defined benefit pension scheme
The Group operated a defined benefit pension scheme, the Bradford & Bingley Staff Pension Scheme ('the B&B Scheme')
which is administered by 'the Trustee'. The Trustee is responsible for ensuring the B&B Scheme meets its Statutory
Funding Objective which is set by The Pensions Regulator. The B&B Scheme provided benefits to employees on a final
salary basis.  On 31 December 2009 the B&B Scheme was closed to future service accrual; all members became deferred
members and were given the option to join the Group's defined contribution scheme from 1 January 2010.  The normal
pension age of employees in the principal scheme is 65 for those who left before 6 April 2005 and 60 for the other members.
In respect of deferred members, deferred pension entitlement increases are calculated by reference to the Consumer Prices
Index ('CPI').

The credit or cost to the Group of funding the B&B Scheme guaranteed benefits varies over time, dependent on market
conditions and life expectancies. The credit in the period was £0.6m (31 March 2014: £2.4m cost) and the retirement benefit
remeasurement gain recognised in other comprehensive income during the period was £62.2m (2014: £18.9m).

The assets of the B&B Scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. The Trustee of the B&B Scheme has
passed a resolution for the ultimate refund to B&B of any future surpluses on the B&B Scheme.

Under an agreed recovery plan to address the deficit on the B&B Scheme, the Group is committed to making annual
contributions to the B&B Scheme up to and including June 2019. Under this plan the Group has contributed £35.1m in the
year to 31 March 2015, and future contributions will increase at a compounding annual rate of 10%.  The recovery plan will
be reassessed following the next formal triennial valuation in June 2015.

The Trustee manages the volatility in the value of the B&B Scheme's assets by limiting the exposure to return-seeking
assets and using liability-driven investment strategies to increase the level of hedging against investment risks. The two key
investment risks are interest rate risk and inflation risk relating to the B&B Scheme's obligations. By holding swaps, fixed
interest gilts, index-linked gilts and corporate bonds, approximately 70% of the interest rate risk and approximately 72% of
the inflation risk has been hedged. The holding of return-seeking assets is close to the target level required to achieve the
investment return assumed within the deficit recovery plan.

The B&B Scheme has a written guarantee from HM Treasury that benefits will be paid in full to the members.

(b) Defined contribution pension scheme
The Group also operates a defined contribution pension scheme, the UKAR Pension Plan, into which both employees and
the Group make contributions. The assets of this scheme are independent from those of the Group. The Group and
Company had no liabilities or prepayments associated with this scheme at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: £nil).  The cost
in the period to the Group of this scheme was £4.1m (2014: £4.2m). The cost to the Group varies according to the number
of employees in the Group and their salary levels, but the Group has no risk of being required to provide additional funding
to the scheme.

(c) Healthcare scheme
The Group provides healthcare benefits to some of its pensioners.  The healthcare benefits are provided through a scheme
into which the Group contributes 100% towards the cost of providing the benefits for members who retired before 1 January
1996 and 50% for members who retired after this date.  The value of the Group's obligation is assessed in accordance with
the advice of a qualified actuary. The cost in the period to the Group of this scheme was £0.4m (2014: £0.6m) and the
remeasurement loss recognised in the B&B Group's other comprehensive income during the period was £1.4m (2014: gain
£1.5m).

(d) Defined benefit section of the scheme
The amounts carried on the Group and Company Balance Sheets are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plan

Post-retirement
medical benefits Total

At 31 Mar
2015

At 31 Mar
2014

At 31 Mar
2015

At 31 Mar
2014

At 31 Mar
2015

At 31 Mar
2014

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit
obligations (960.0) (782.2) (9.4) (8.0) (969.4) (790.2)
Fair value of defined benefit assets 1,045.7 769.9 - - 1,045.7 769.9
Net defined benefit surplus/(liability) 85.7 (12.3) (9.4) (8.0) 76.3 (20.3)

The amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement were as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plan

Post-retirement
medical benefits Total

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014

12 months
to  31 Mar

2015

15 months
to  31 Mar

2014

12 months
to  31 Mar

2015

15 months
to  31 Mar

2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Net interest (income)/expense (0.6) 2.4 0.4 0.6 (0.2) 3.0
Total recognised in the Income Statement (0.6) 2.4 0.4 0.6 (0.2) 3.0
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24.  Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(d) Defined benefit section of the scheme (continued)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plan

Post-retirement
medical benefits Total

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m

At start of period 782.2 730.8 8.0 9.6 790.2 740.4
Interest on defined benefit obligations 35.6 40.4 0.4 0.6 36.0 41.0
Remeasurements:
- effect of changes in financial

assumptions 165.8 34.8 1.4 (1.7) 167.2 33.1
- effect of experience adjustments - 1.4 - 0.2 - 1.6
Administrative expenses included
within defined benefit obligation - (1.4) - - - (1.4)
Benefits paid from plan (23.6) (23.8) (0.4) (0.7) (24.0) (24.5)
At end of period 960.0 782.2 9.4 8.0 969.4 790.2

Movements in the fair value of defined benefit assets were as follows:

The major categories of defined benefit assets at the end of the period were as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
pension plan medical benefits Total

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014

12 months
to 31 Mar

2015

15 months
to 31 Mar

2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m

At start of period 769.9 669.9 - - 769.9 669.9
Interest income on defined benefit
assets

37.2 38.0 - - 37.2 38.0

Defined benefit company contributions 35.1 32.1 0.4 0.7 35.5 32.8
Remeasurements:
- return on plan assets (excluding

interest income)
228.0 55.1 - - 228.0 55.1

Administrative expenses paid from
plan assets

(1.0) (1.4) - - (1.0) (1.4)

Benefits paid from plan (23.5) (23.8) (0.4) (0.7) (23.9) (24.5)
At end of period 1,045.7 769.9 - - 1,045.7 769.9

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Equity instruments 178.1 5.8 183.9 155.3 5.5 160.8
Property 1.5 37.9 39.4 2.1 40.5 42.6
Bonds:

- of which UK 6.2 213.4 219.6 8.4 116.3 124.7
- of which overseas 55.8 - 55.8 48.5 98.7 147.2

Liability hedging investments 3.8 523.2 527.0 3.1 253.3 256.4
Cash and cash equivalents - 20.0 20.0 - 38.2 38.2
Total 245.4 800.3 1,045.7 217.4 552.5 769.9
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24.  Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(e) Assumptions
Summary actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
To determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate 3.4% 4.6%
Inflation (RPI) 3.1% 3.5%
Inflation (CPI) 2.3% 2.7%
Future pension increases 3.0% 3.3%
To determine net pension cost:
Discount rate 4.6% 4.5%
For post-retirement medical plan:
Discount rate 3.4% 4.6%
Medical cost trend for duration of liability 5.5% 5.5%

In determining the expected long-term return on defined benefit assets, the Group considered the current level of expected
returns on risk-free investments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of risk premium associated with the other
asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns on each asset class. The expected
return for each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term return
for the portfolio.

The table below shows the life expectancy assumptions from age 60:

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
Pensioner Non-retired member Pensioner Non-retired member

Male 28.6 30.1 28.5 30.0
Female 31.4 32.9 31.2 32.8

(f) Maturity profile of the obligation
The defined benefit pension scheme has a weighted average maturity of around 24 years.

(g) Sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the defined benefit pension scheme obligations to three key assumptions: the
discount rate, the rate of inflation and the mortality assumption:

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on obligations
Discount rate Decrease by 0.5% Increase by 13%
Inflation Increase by 0.5% Increase by 11%
Mortality Decrease by 1 year Increase by 2%

If the assumptions were to change by the same amount in the opposite direction to those illustrated, the obligations would
decrease by a similar percentage to those shown in the table in each case.

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts recognised in staff costs. A one percentage point
change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effects:

At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2014
£m £m

Effect on interest cost 0.1 0.1
Effect on defined benefit obligation 1.5 1.2



Notes to the Financial Statements Annual Report & Accounts 2015

58

25.  Provisions

Customer
 redress

Onerous
contracts Restructuring Total

Group £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2014 22.8 0.1 6.4 29.3
Utilised in the year (11.1) (0.1) (4.4) (15.6)
Charged in the year 10.8 - - 10.8
At 31 March 2015 22.5 - 2.0 24.5

Customer
 redress

Onerous
contracts Restructuring Total

Company £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2014 22.8 0.1 6.4 29.3
Utilised in the year (12.6) (0.1) (4.4) (17.1)
Charged in the year 9.6 - - 9.6
At 31 March 2015 19.8 - 2.0 21.8

Customer
redress

Onerous
contracts Restructuring Total

Group and Company £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2013 22.0 0.4 50.5 72.9
Utilised in the period (13.7) (0.1) (39.3) (53.1)
Charged in the period 14.5 - - 14.5
Released in the period - (0.2) (4.8) (5.0)
At 31 March 2014 22.8 0.1 6.4 29.3

UKAR defines conduct risk as the risk of UKAR treating its customers unfairly and delivering inappropriate outcomes leading
to customer detriment or impacting market integrity. Since the creation of UKAR the Company has been remediating a
series of conduct issues inherited from the legacy business including the mis-selling of Payment Protection Insurance
(‘PPI’).

During 2014/15, the level of mortgage PPI claims has not reduced as anticipated. As a result, PPI provisions have been
increased by £5.5m.

In addition a further £5.3m was provided for other remediation activities (primarily relating to mis-selling of wealth products
and complaint handling costs).

The timing and total value of future PPI payments and other remediation payments are uncertain and dependent on a
number of external factors; it has been assumed that the value of PPI and other remediation claims will continue to decline
over time and beyond 31 March 2018 will not be material.

The onerous contracts provision related to empty leasehold premises which, as at the Balance Sheet date, were no longer
used by the business but were subject to lease agreements.

The restructuring provision relates primarily to the ongoing organisational restructure.

26.  Capital instruments

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
Group and Company

Initial
 interest rate

Carrying
amount

 £m
Principal

£m

Carrying
amount

£m
Principal

£m

Dated subordinated notes 7.625% 7.8 5.0 17.6 12.2
Dated fixed rate step-up
subordinated notes

5.50% - - 5.6 4.4

Callable perpetual subordinated
notes

5.625% - - 22.5 18.1

Callable perpetual subordinated
notes

6.00% - - 18.2 14.7

Undated perpetual subordinated
bonds

13.00% - - 51.1 41.5

Undated perpetual subordinated
bonds

11.625% - - 44.1 35.7

Total 7.8 5.0 159.1 126.6
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26.  Capital instruments (continued)

These capital instruments are all denominated in sterling.

The carrying values of these instruments are on an EIR basis.

As detailed in note 7, in 2014/15 and 2013/14 the Company bought back certain of its own subordinated liabilities.

Redemptions of any subordinated liabilities prior to their final maturity date are subject to obtaining prior consent of the FCA.

The 7.625% dated subordinated notes have no call dates.  No payments of interest have been made in respect of these
notes since February 2009.

The rights of repayment of holders of subordinated liabilities are subordinated to the claims of other creditors.

27.  Share capital

Group and Company Ordinary shares of 25p each:

31 Mar 2015
Number of
shares (m)

31 Mar 2014
Number of
shares (m)

31 Mar 2015

£m

31 Mar 2014

£m

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid brought
forward and carried forward

1,445.3 1,445.3 361.3 361.3

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Company no longer has authorised capital other than its issued capital.

The Company has one class of shares: Ordinary shares of 25p each, ranking equally in respect of rights attached to voting,
dividends and in the event of a winding-up.

No dividends were declared or paid in 2014/15 or 2013/14 on the Company's shares.  No dividends had been proposed by
the date of approval of these Financial Statements.

28.  Reserves

Reserves comprise the following: Group Group Company Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Share premium reserve 198.9 198.9 198.9 198.9
Capital redemption reserve 29.2 29.2 29.2 29.2
Available-for-sale reserve 26.7 25.8 26.7 25.8
Cash flow hedge reserve 56.0 61.1 43.0 56.9
Total 310.8 315.0 297.8 310.8

The share premium reserve represents the excess of the consideration received for issued shares over the nominal value of
those shares, net of transaction costs.

The capital redemption reserve was created on the sale of surplus conversion shares and to maintain the total amount of
capital when shares were repurchased by the Company.

Available-for-sale reserve Group Group Company Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m
At start of period 25.8 17.1 25.8 17.1
Amounts recognised in equity 2.0 9.7 2.0 9.7
Amounts transferred to net income (1.1) (1.0) (1.1) (1.0)
At end of period 26.7 25.8 26.7 25.8

The available-for-sale reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on assets classified as available-for-sale.

Cash flow hedge reserve Group Group Company Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m
At start of period 61.1 93.1 56.9 86.8
Amounts recognised in equity (332.2) (101.6) (334.3) (64.3)
Amounts transferred to net income 327.1 69.6 320.4 34.4
At end of period 56.0 61.1 43.0 56.9

The cash flow hedge reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on financial instruments which are effective cash
flow hedges.
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29.  Release of time-expired provision for unclaimed shares

Following demutualisation of Bradford & Bingley Building Society in 2000, a number of shares in B&B were unclaimed as the
Registered Holders could not be traced. In accordance with B&B's Articles of Association, these shares were sold in March
2004 and the proceeds held by B&B for a further period of nine years to satisfy any claims received from the Registered
Holders who were originally entitled to the shares. During the period from demutualisation to 31 March 2013 B&B sought
periodically to trace the Registered Holders. The Registered Holders' entitlement to the proceeds of the sale of the
unclaimed shares expired in March 2013, and the remaining provision of £13.2m was, therefore, released to retained
earnings.

30.  Off-Balance Sheet commitments: commitments payable

Group

At 31 March 2015
Within one

year
In one to

five years
Over five

years Total
£m £m £m £m

Loan commitments:
- loans to customers 184.3 - - 184.3

Operating lease commitments:
- land and buildings 1.4 5.0 5.4 11.8

Capital commitments 5.2 - - 5.2
Total 190.9 5.0 5.4 201.3

Group

At 31 March 2014
Within one

year
In one to

five years
Over five

years Total
£m £m £m £m

Loan commitments:
- loans to customers 169.9 - - 169.9

Operating lease commitments:
- land and buildings 0.2 0.4 - 0.6

Capital commitments 0.7 - - 0.7
Total 170.8 0.4 - 171.2

Company

At 31 March 2015
Within one

year
In one to

five years
Over five

years Total
£m £m £m £m

Loan commitments:
- loans to customers 152.6 - - 152.6

Operating lease commitments:
- land and buildings 1.4 5.0 5.4 11.8

Capital commitments 5.2 - - 5.2
Total 159.2 5.0 5.4 169.6

Company

At 31 March 2014
Within one

year
In one to

five years
Over five

years Total
£m £m £m £m

Loan commitments:
- loans to customers 139.3 - - 139.3

Operating lease commitments:
- land and buildings 0.2 0.4 - 0.6

Capital commitments 0.7 - - 0.7
Total 140.2 0.4 - 140.6

Loan commitments represent contractual amounts to which the Group/Company is committed for extension of credit to
customers. The commitment comprises cash which could be drawn down by customers in respect of further advances and
re-drawal of amounts voluntarily overpaid.

Operating lease commitments represent minimum future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases.

Capital commitments represent contractual amounts to which the Group/Company is committed in respect of IT
infrastructure investment.



Notes to the Financial Statements Annual Report & Accounts 2015

61

31.  Related party disclosures

(a) Key management personnel
The Group considers the Board of Directors and the members of the Executive Committee to be the key management
personnel. There were no amounts owed to or by key management personnel at any time during the period (2014: £nil).

A summary of the Group's share of the remuneration of the 15 (2014: 16) key management personnel is set out in the table
below. These amounts include the Group's share of the remuneration of the Directors which is set out in more detail in the
Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 30 to 44 of the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts of UKAR. The Directors'
Remuneration Report gives details of the UKAR Group's Directors' salaries, fees, bonuses, pension benefits, other
incentives and other benefits. The aggregate UKAR Group emoluments of the UKAR Group's Directors were £1,459,251
(2014: £1,952,323) and the emoluments of the highest paid Director were £653,227 (2014: £980,771). Included in these
amounts are £nil (2014: £36,256) which the Group paid into the Group's money purchase pension scheme. In addition,
Directors paid £nil (2014: £7,251) into this scheme. In 2014/15 the B&B Group bore half of the cost of the UKAR Directors in
its Income Statement, the other half being borne by NRAM. Included in the B&B Group's Income Statement, the aggregate
Directors' emoluments and the emoluments of the highest paid Director amounted to £729,626 and £326,614 respectively
(2014: £976,161 and £490,386 respectively).  The UKAR Group did not make any loss of office payments to Directors
during the year (2014: £nil). The key management personnel contributed £42,000 (2014: £35,000) to Group pension
schemes during the period.

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

15 months to
31 Mar 2014

Remuneration of key management personnel £000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 1,417 2,167
Post-employment benefits 150 185
Total 1,567 2,352

Further details of the accounting treatment of pensions and of the Group's and Company's transactions and balances with
the Group's pension schemes are given in note 24. There were no amounts due to or from the schemes at 31 March 2015
(2014: £nil).

(b) UK government
As described in note 37, the Company considers the UK government to be its ultimate controlling party. The Group's
material balances with departments and bodies of the government comprise deposits with the Bank of England (see note
10), loans from HM Treasury (see note 21) and the Statutory Debt (see note 21). HM Treasury has also provided guarantee
arrangements to the Group, for which the Group pays fees (see note 3). In addition to these loans and guarantees, the
Group has balances and transactions with numerous government bodies on an arm's length basis in relation to the payment
of corporation tax, VAT and employee taxes, and the payment of regulatory fees and levies. The Group has balances and
transactions with UKFI and with banks over which the UK government has significant influence; these were made in the
ordinary course of business and are not unusual in their nature or conditions. In the year B&B paid £0.5m (2014: nil) relating
to advisors to UKFI on UKAR’s future strategy.

(c) Subsidiary companies
Balances outstanding with subsidiary companies and movements in these loans were as follows:

Securitisation Other 2015 Securitisation Other 2014
SPVs subsidiaries Total SPVs subsidiaries Total

Receivables £m £m £m £m £m £m
At start of period 276.0 6,728.7 7,004.7 313.7 7,277.1 7,590.8
Net movement over the period (34.2) (760.8) (795.0) (37.7) (548.4) (586.1)
At end of period 241.8 5,967.9 6,209.7 276.0 6,728.7 7,004.7

Securitisation Other 2015 Securitisation Other 2014
SPVs subsidiaries Total SPVs subsidiaries Total

Payables £m £m £m £m £m £m
At start of period 3,315.1 - 3,315.1 3,710.3 933.5 4,643.8
Net movement over the period (386.8) - (386.8) (395.2) (933.5) (1,328.7)
At end of period 2,928.3 - 2,928.3 3,315.1 - 3,315.1

The Company held £3,355.0m of loan notes issued by SPV subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 (2014: £3,624.6m). In order to
avoid recognising the underlying mortgage assets twice, the securities are netted off the Company's liabilities to the
subsidiaries which issued the securities.  During the year the Company recognised interest income of £53.4m (2014:
£71.2m) in respect of these notes.  The Company also held £300.5m (2014: £300.5m) of investment securities issued by its
subsidiary Mortgage Express.  During the year the Company recognised interest income of £6.0m (2014: £7.5m) in respect
of these securities.
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31.  Related party disclosures (continued)

(d) Fellow subsidiary
The Company held £65.8m of loan notes issued by NRAM at 31 March 2015 (2014: £75.4m). Interest income earned by the
Company on these notes during the period amounted to £0.9m (2014: £1.1m). NRAM held £39.4m of loan notes issued by
the Company at 31 March 2015 (2014: £44.1m). The Company's interest expense on these notes during the period
amounted to £0.4m (2014: £0.4m).

During the period, the Company recharged a total of £89.1m (2014: £143.6m) to NRAM of which £79.7m (2014: £143.6m)
was deducted from the Company's ongoing administrative expenses (including £0.4m (2014: £0.5m) in respect of pass
through charges from Virgin Money).

At 31 March 2015 the Company was owed £14.2m by NRAM (2014: £19.2m).

(e) Parent company
During 2014/15 the Company was charged £0.3m (2014: £0.4m) by UKAR for the services of Non-Executive Directors. The
Company recharged UKAR £0.5m (2014: £0.8m) in respect of fees and other costs of Non-Executive Directors which were
paid by B&B on UKAR's behalf. At 31 March 2015 the Company owed £0.1m to UKAR (2014: £nil).

32.  Capital structure

The Company met its capital requirements in full throughout 2014/15 and 2013/14. B&B is regulated by the FCA as a
mortgage administration company under the MIPRU regime. MIPRU regulation is applied at individual company level, not at
B&B Group level. The Board considers core equity, formerly tier 1 capital, to be of pre-eminent importance in the capital
structure of the business and continues to monitor this closely, in addition to the total level of capital. The Directors believe
the Company has appropriate and adequate levels of capital to support its activities, subject to the continuing support of HM
Treasury. While FCA rules require the Company to hold capital in excess of 1% of total Balance Sheet assets plus any
undrawn commitments, the Board believes it appropriate to hold a higher level of capital and as at 31 March 2015 capital in
the Company represented 7.7% of the Company's assets.

The table below sets out the Company's regulatory capital resources under MIPRU.

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to maintain capital resources to support the objectives of
the business, to cover risks inherent in its activities and to ensure compliance with externally imposed capital requirements.
The capital structure is managed in response to changes in the nature of the Company's activities and economic conditions.

The Company defines equity and certain other capital instruments as capital. Capital excludes accounting reserves for
available-for-sale assets and cash flow hedges. The Company's capital adequacy and capital resources are managed and
monitored in accordance with the regulatory capital rules of the FCA. The Company must at all times monitor and
demonstrate compliance with the relevant regulatory capital requirements of the FCA. The required capital information is
filed with the FCA on a quarterly basis.

The deductions comprise investments in Group undertakings, holdings of investment securities issued by the Company’s
subsidiary undertakings and intangible assets.

Company
At 31 March

2015
At 31 March

2014
£m £m

Share capital and reserves 3,008.9 2,740.2
Available-for-sale reserve adjustments (26.7) (25.8)
Cash flow hedge reserve adjustments (43.0) (56.9)
Net pension adjustment (85.7) -
Less: deductions (512.7) (515.1)
Tier 1 capital 2,340.8 2,142.4
Capital instruments - 81.8
Total capital 2,340.8 2,224.2
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33.  Financial instruments

(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value
The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities. Assets are generally
presented at bid prices, whereas offer prices are used for liabilities. The accounting policy note 1(g) sets out the key
principles used for estimating the fair values of financial instruments.  Note 33(f) provides some additional information in
respect of the methodologies used.

Group Available-
for-sale

Assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Loans and
receivables

Hedging
adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England - - 1,045.6 - 1,045.6 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand - - 1,594.9 - 1,594.9 1,594.9
Investment securities 223.2 - - - 223.2 223.2
Loans to customers - - 27,315.7 - 27,315.7 24,565.9
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging

- - - 414.5 414.5 -

Derivative financial instruments - 877.2 - - 877.2 877.2
Other financial assets - - 14.5 - 14.5 14.5
Total financial assets 223.2 877.2 29,970.7 414.5 31,485.6 28,321.3

Group Available-
for-sale

Assets at fair
value through

profit or loss
Loans and

receivables
Hedging

adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England - - 1,118.7 - 1,118.7 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand - - 1,554.5 - 1,554.5 1,554.5
Investment securities 374.2 - - 4.1 378.3 378.3
Loans to customers - - 30,212.8 - 30,212.8 26,317.9
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging

- - - 223.0 223.0 -

Derivative financial instruments - 1,569.6 - - 1,569.6 1,569.6
Other financial assets - - 30.0 - 30.0 30.0
Total financial assets 374.2 1,569.6 32,916.0 227.1 35,086.9 30,969.0

Liabilities at fair
value through
 profit or loss

Liabilities at
amortised cost

Hedging
adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
£m £m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks - 674.3 - 674.3 674.3
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 23,415.3 - 23,415.3 23,415.3
Derivative financial instruments 331.9 - - 331.9 331.9
Debt securities in issue - 7,303.0 235.6 7,538.6 7,687.5
Capital instruments - 158.5 0.6 159.1 145.1
Other financial liabilities - 105.2 - 105.2 105.2
Total financial liabilities 331.9 31,656.3 236.2 32,224.4 32,359.3

Liabilities at fair
value through
 profit or loss

Liabilities at
amortised cost

Hedging
adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
£m £m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks - 503.6 - 503.6 503.6
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 20,963.3 - 20,963.3 20,963.3
Derivative financial instruments 499.1 - - 499.1 499.1
Debt securities in issue - 6,147.4 106.4 6,253.8 6,342.3
Capital instruments - 7.8 - 7.8 13.0
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - 87.0 87.0
Total financial liabilities 499.1 27,709.1 106.4 28,314.6 28,408.3
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33.  Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value (continued)

Company Available-
for-sale

Assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Loans and
receivables

Hedging
adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England - - 1,045.6 - 1,045.6 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand - - 652.8 - 652.8 652.8
Investment securities 223.2 - 300.5 - 523.7 523.7
Loans to customers - - 26,901.9 - 26,901.9 24,659.1
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging

- - - 414.5 414.5 -

Derivative financial instruments - 553.2 - - 553.2 553.2
Other financial assets - - 14.5 - 14.5 14.5
Total financial assets 223.2 553.2 28,915.3 414.5 30,106.2 27,448.9

Liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

Liabilities at
amortised

cost
Hedging

adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
£m £m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks - 9.8 - 9.8 9.8
Other deposits - 2,928.3 - 2,928.3 2,928.3
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 20,963.3 - 20,963.3 20,963.3
Derivative financial instruments 499.1 - - 499.1 499.1
Debt securities in issue - 2,723.4 108.0 2,831.4 3,004.8
Capital instruments - 7.8 - 7.8 13.0
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - 84.7 84.7
Total financial liabilities 499.1 26,717.3 108.0 27,324.4 27,503.0

Company Available-
for-sale

Assets at fair
value through

profit or loss
Loans and

receivables
Hedging

adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England - - 1,118.7 - 1,118.7 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand - - 446.4 - 446.4 446.4
Investment securities 374.2 - 300.5 4.1 678.8 678.8
Loans to customers - - 29,971.8 - 29,971.8 26,836.9
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging

- - - 223.0 223.0 -

Derivative financial instruments - 1,102.6 - - 1,102.6 1,102.6
Other financial assets - - 29.9 - 29.9 29.9
Total financial assets 374.2 1,102.6 31,867.3 227.1 33,571.2 30,213.3

Liabilities at fair
value through

profit or loss

Liabilities at
amortised

cost
Hedging

adjustments

Total
carrying

value Fair value
£m £m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks - 4.2 - 4.2 4.2
Other deposits - 3,315.1 - 3,315.1 3,315.1
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 23,415.3 - 23,415.3 23,415.3
Derivative financial instruments 331.9 - - 331.9 331.9
Debt securities in issue - 3,402.5 233.9 3,636.4 3,937.2
Capital instruments - 158.5 0.6 159.1 145.1
Other financial liabilities - 101.3 - 101.3 101.3
Total financial liabilities 331.9 30,396.9 234.5 30,963.3 31,250.1
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33  Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value (continued)

No financial assets or liabilities were reclassified during 2014/15 or 2013/14 between amortised cost and fair value categories.

(b) Interest income and expense on financial instruments that are not at fair value through profit or loss

Group 12 months to
 31 Mar 2015

15 months to
 31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Interest income 820.8 1,141.2
Interest expense (381.1) (664.3)
Net interest income 439.7 476.9

These amounts represent interest income and expense before hedging arrangements.

(c) Impaired financial assets

Allowance accounts for credit losses in respect of impairment of loans to customers are detailed in note 12 and in respect of
investment securities in note 10. No impairment loss has been recognised in respect of any other class of financial asset,
and no other class of financial asset includes assets that are past due.

(d) De-recognition of financial assets

Loans to customers which have been securitised are not de-recognised from the Balance Sheet of the originator of the loan
as the originator retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of the securitised loan (see note 22).

(e) Hedge accounting
Strategy in using derivative financial instruments
The Board has authorised the use of derivative instruments for the purpose of supporting the strategic and operational
business activities of the Group and reducing the risk of loss arising in the Group or Company from changes in interest rates
and exchange rates. All use of derivative instruments within the Group is to hedge risk exposure and the Group takes no
trading positions in derivatives.

The objective when using any derivative instrument is to ensure that the risk to reward profile of any transaction is
optimised. The intention is only to use derivatives to create economically effective hedges. However, IAS 39 requires certain
tests to be satisfied before hedge accounting is permitted. Consequently, not all economic hedges are designated as
accounting hedges either because natural accounting offsets are expected, or because obtaining hedge accounting would
be especially onerous.

(i) Fair value hedges
The Group designates a number of derivatives as fair value hedges. In particular the Group has three approaches
establishing relationships for:

 Hedging the interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate risk of non-prepayable, foreign currency
denominated fixed rate assets or liabilities on a one-for-one basis with fixed/floating or floating/fixed cross
currency interest rate swaps.

 Hedging the interest rate risk of a single currency portfolio of sterling, US Dollar or Euro non-prepayable fixed
rate assets/liabilities on a one-for-one basis with vanilla fixed/floating or floating/fixed interest rate swaps.

 Hedging the interest rate risk of a portfolio of prepayable fixed rate assets with interest rate derivatives. This
solution is used to establish a macro fair value hedge for derivatives hedging fixed rate mortgages. The Group
believes this solution is consistent with its policy for hedging fixed rate mortgages on an economic basis.

(ii) Cash flow hedges
The Group designates a number of derivatives as cash flow hedges. In particular, the Group adopts the following
approaches:

 Using fixed interest rate swaps to hedge floating rate sterling liabilities.

 To address the volatility generated by floating/floating cross currency swaps, they are placed into cash flow
hedges; the accounting hedge relationship is to hedge the foreign currency exchange rate risk of the foreign
currency denominated asset/liability.

 Fixed/floating cross currency swaps are split into their separate risk components and separately designated into
cash flow hedges.

 Basis swaps are split into their separate risk components and separately designated into cash flow hedges.
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33.  Financial instruments (continued)

(e) Hedge accounting (continued)

(iii) Net investment hedges
The Group has not designated any derivatives as net investment hedges in 2014/15 or 2013/14.

The Group had the following types of hedges:

At 31 March 2015 Fair value
hedges

Cash flow
hedges

Economic
hedges Total

Notional
amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts - 867.7 9.3 877.0 4,579.7
Interest rate contracts - 0.2 - 0.2 20.0
Total asset balances - 867.9 9.3 877.2

Exchange rate contracts - - 2.3 2.3 138.8
Interest rate contracts 463.4 25.6 7.8 496.8 9,702.1
Total liability balances 463.4 25.6 10.1 499.1

Fair value of hedging instruments (463.4) 842.3 (0.8) 378.1

At 31 March 2014 Fair value
hedges

Cash flow
hedges

Economic
hedges Total

Notional
amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts - 1,564.3 0.9 1,565.2 4,939.1
Interest rate contracts - 1.0 3.4 4.4 6,165.5
Total asset balances - 1,565.3 4.3 1,569.6

Exchange rate contracts - - 5.6 5.6 166.8
Interest rate contracts 272.6 45.4 8.3 326.3 6,751.5
Total liability balances 272.6 45.4 13.9 331.9

Fair value of hedging instruments (272.6) 1,519.9 (9.6) 1,237.7

The Company had the following types of hedges:

At 31 March 2015 Fair value
hedges

Cash flow
hedges

Economic
hedges Total

Notional
amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts - 543.7 9.3 553.0 2,530.0
Interest rate contracts - 0.2 - 0.2 20.0
Total asset balances - 543.9 9.3 553.2

Exchange rate contracts - - 2.3 2.3 138.8
Interest rate contracts 463.4 25.6 7.8 496.8 9,702.1
Total liability balances 463.4 25.6 10.1 499.1

Fair value of hedging instruments (463.4) 518.3 (0.8) 54.1

At 31 March 2014
Fair value

hedges
Cash flow

hedges
Economic

hedges Total
Notional
amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts - 1,097.3 0.9 1,098.2 2,677.5
Interest rate contracts - 1.0 3.4 4.4 6,165.5
Total asset balances - 1,098.3 4.3 1,102.6

Exchange rate contracts - - 5.6 5.6 166.8
Interest rate contracts 272.6 45.4 8.3 326.3 6,751.5
Total liability balances 272.6 45.4 13.9 331.9

Fair value of hedging instruments (272.6) 1,052.9 (9.6) 770.7
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33.  Financial instruments (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are valued on the following bases:

Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Investment securities - available-for-sale 31.8 191.4 - 223.2
Derivative financial instruments - 877.2 - 877.2

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments - (499.1) - (499.1)
Net financial assets 31.8 569.5 - 601.3

Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Investment securities - available-for-sale 106.3 272.0 - 378.3
Derivative financial instruments - 1,569.6 - 1,569.6

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments - (331.9) - (331.9)
Net financial assets 106.3 1,509.7 - 1,616.0

Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Investment securities - available-for-sale 31.8 191.4 - 223.2
Derivative financial instruments - 553.2 - 553.2

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments - (499.1) - (499.1)
Net financial assets 31.8 245.5 - 277.3

Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Investment securities - available-for-sale 106.3 272.0 - 378.3
Derivative financial instruments - 1,102.6 - 1,102.6

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments - (331.9) - (331.9)
Net financial assets 106.3 1,042.7 - 1,149.0

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, whether directly (i.e. as price) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from the implications of prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data, or have significant unobservable
inputs.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period (2014: none).

Available-for-sale investment securities which are categorised as Level 1 are valued based on quoted market prices.

Available-for-sale investment securities which are categorised as Level 2 are those which are less frequently traded, hence
trade prices cannot always be relied on as sufficient evidence of fair value.  For such securities, fair value is estimated by the
securities' lead managers, taking into account recent trades, similar assets adjusted for credit spreads and where applicable
the underlying performance of assets backing the securities (so unobservable inputs are not considered significant).  These
prices are reviewed against quoted prices where available.
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33.  Financial instruments (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)
Derivative financial instruments which are categorised as Level 2 are those which either:

(a) Have future cash flows which are on known dates and for which the cash flow amounts are known or calculable by
reference to observable interest and foreign currency exchange rates; or

(b) Have future cash flows which are not pre-defined but for which the fair value of the instrument has very low sensitivity to
unobservable inputs.

In each case the fair value is calculated by discounting future cash flows using observable market parameters including swap
rates, interest rates and currency rates.

For financial assets and liabilities which are not carried at fair value, the fair values disclosed in note 33(a) are calculated on
the following bases:

Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand 1,594.9 - - 1,594.9
Loans to customers - - 24,565.9 24,565.9
Other financial assets - 14.5 - 14.5

2,640.5 14.5 24,565.9 27,220.9

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 503.6 - - 503.6
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,963.3 - - 20,963.3
Debt securities in issue - 6,342.3 - 6,342.3
Capital instruments - 13.0 - 13.0
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - 87.0

21,466.9 6,442.3 - 27,909.2

Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.7 - - 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 1,554.5 - - 1,554.5
Loans to customers - - 26,317.9 26,317.9
Other financial assets - 30.0 - 30.0

2,673.2 30.0 26,317.9 29,021.1

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 674.3 - - 674.3
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 23,415.3 - - 23,415.3
Debt securities in issue - 7,687.5 - 7,687.5
Capital instruments - 145.1 - 145.1
Other financial liabilities - 105.2 - 105.2

24,089.6 7,937.8 - 32,027.4

Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand 652.8 - - 652.8
Investment securities 300.5 - - 300.5
Loans to customers - - 24,659.1 24,659.1
Other financial assets - 14.5 - 14.5

1,998.9 14.5 24,659.1 26,672.5

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 9.8 - - 9.8
Other deposits 2,928.3 - - 2,928.3
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,963.3 - - 20,963.3
Debt securities in issue - 3,004.8 - 3,004.8
Capital instruments - 13.0 - 13.0
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - 84.7

23,901.4 3,102.5 - 27,003.9
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33.  Financial instruments (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.7 - - 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 446.4 - - 446.4
Investment securities 300.5 - - 300.5
Loans to customers - - 26,836.9 26,836.9
Other financial assets - 29.9 - 29.9

1,865.6 29.9 26,836.9 28,732.4

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 4.2 - - 4.2
Other deposits 3,315.1 - - 3,315.1
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 23,415.3 - - 23,415.3
Debt securities in issue - 3,937.2 - 3,937.2
Capital instruments - 145.1 - 145.1
Other financial liabilities - 101.3 - 101.3

26,734.6 4,183.6 - 30,918.2

Valuation methods for calculations of fair values in the table above are as follows:

Balances with the Bank of England
Fair value approximates to carrying value because they have minimal credit losses and are either short term in nature or
reprice frequently.

Cash at bank and in hand
Fair value is estimated by using discounted cash flows applying either market rates where practicable or rates offered by
other financial institutions for accounts with similar characteristics. The fair value of floating rate placements, fixed rate
placements with less than six months to maturity and overnight deposits is their carrying amount.

Investment securities held as loans and receivables
Fair values are based on quoted prices where available or by using discounted cash flows applying market rates.

Loans to customers
Loans to customers include loans of varying rates and maturities. Fair value is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows using market interest rates. Expected future cash flows take account of estimated future losses. Market interest
rates are based on current lending activity in the mortgage market. In respect of the majority of the Group's fixed interest rate
loans, the change in interest rates since inception means that their fair value can vary significantly from their carrying value;
however, as the Group's policy is to hedge fixed rate loans in respect of interest rate risk, the Group has no material
exposure to this difference in fair value.

Amounts due to banks and other deposits
Fair values of deposit liabilities repayable on demand or with variable interest rates are considered to approximate to
carrying value. The fair value of fixed interest deposits with less than six months to maturity is estimated to be their carrying
amount. The fair value of all other deposit liabilities was estimated using discounted cash flows, applying market rates.

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans
The fair value is estimated to be the carrying amount as the interest rate charged varies in line with changes in market rates,
or the loans are considered to be repayable on demand subject to timing of repayment of loans to customers.

Debt securities in issue and capital instruments
Fair values are based on quoted prices or lead manager prices where available or by using discounted cash flows, applying
independently sourced market parameters including interest rates and currency rates.

Other financial assets and liabilities
Fair value approximates to carrying value because the balances are short term in nature.

(g) Transferred financial assets
As set out in note 22, the Group/Company has transferred financial assets (loans and receivables) to securitisation
structures. The Group/Company retains all of the risks and rewards associated with these loans and they are, therefore,
retained on the Group's/Company's Balance Sheets.
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33.  Financial instruments (continued)

(g) Transferred financial assets (continued)
The table below sets out the carrying values of the transferred assets and the associated liabilities. For securitisation
structures, the associated liabilities represent the external notes in issue (see note 22). None of these notes have recourse
to the transferred assets.

Group and Company Group

At 31 March 2015 Transferred assets Associated liabilities
Carrying amount Carrying amount

£m £m

Loans to customers securitised 17,241.1 6,222.4

Group and Company Group

At 31 March 2014 Transferred assets Associated liabilities
Carrying amount Carrying amount

£m £m

Loans to customers securitised 18,794.1 7,361.2

(h) Offsetting
No financial assets have been offset against financial liabilities. Balances which are subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements are as follows:

Group

At 31 March 2015

Gross and net amounts as
reported on the Balance

Sheet

Amounts available to be offset (but
not offset on the Balance Sheet)

Net amounts
after offsetting

under IFRS 7
Master netting
arrangements

Financial
collateral

£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial assets 877.2 (0.3) (425.3) 451.6
Derivative financial liabilities (499.1) 0.3 494.3 (4.5)

378.1 - 69.0 447.1

Group

At 31 March 2014

Gross and net amounts as
reported on the Balance

Sheet

Amounts available to be offset (but
not offset on the Balance Sheet)

Net amounts
after offsetting
under IFRS 7

Master netting
arrangements

Financial
collateral

£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial assets 1,569.6 (16.7) (651.8) 901.1
Derivative financial liabilities (331.9) 16.7 308.5 (6.7)

1,237.7 - (343.3) 894.4

Company

At 31 March 2015

Gross and net amounts as
reported on the Balance

Sheet

Amounts available to be offset (but
not offset on the Balance Sheet)

Net amounts
after offsetting

under IFRS 7
Master netting
arrangements

Financial
collateral

£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial assets 553.2 (0.3) (101.3) 451.6
Derivative financial liabilities (499.1) 0.3 494.3 (4.5)

54.1 - 393.0 447.1

Company

At 31 March 2014

Gross and net amounts as
reported on the Balance

Sheet

Amounts available to be offset (but
not offset on the Balance Sheet)

Net amounts
after offsetting
under IFRS 7

Master netting
arrangements

Financial
collateral

£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial assets 1,102.6 (16.7) (184.8) 901.1
Derivative financial liabilities (331.9) 16.7 308.5 (6.7)

770.7 - 123.7 894.4
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34. Collateral pledged and received

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Cash collateral which the Group/Company has provided in
respect of derivative contracts

498.0 310.7 498.0 310.7

Total collateral pledged 498.0 310.7 498.0 310.7

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m

Cash collateral which the Group/Company has received in
respect of derivative contracts

503.6 674.2 9.8 4.1

Securities collateral held 130.8 199.9 130.8 199.9
Total collateral received 634.4 874.1 140.6 204.0

In addition to the collateral amounts shown above, certain loans to customers provide security in respect of securitised note
and Covered Bond funding as detailed in note 22. These loans, and also cash collateral pledged shown above, are carried
on the Balance Sheet. The liability to repay the cash collateral received is included within amounts due to banks in the
Balance Sheet. In the absence of counterparty default, the Group/Company has no right to sell or re-pledge the securities
collateral received, and, therefore, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 39 such securities are not recognised on the
Balance Sheet.

35.  Financial risk management

A description of the principal risks to which the Group is exposed is provided on pages 8 to 10 which form an integral part
of the audited Financial Statements.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential for financial loss caused by a party failing to meet an obligation as it becomes due. The Group
considers its most significant credit risk to be the exposure to retail, commercial and wholesale counterparties failing to meet
their obligations. As credit risk is the main risk to the Group, a credit risk framework has been established as part of the
overall governance framework to measure, mitigate and manage credit risk within risk appetite. The Group closely monitors
its credit risk against the Board's credit policies.

The maximum credit risk exposure at the Balance Sheet date before taking account of any collateral netting and other credit
enhancements was as follows:

Group Company
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014

£m £m £m £m
On Balance Sheet:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 1,118.7 1,045.6 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 1,594.9 1,554.5 652.8 446.4
Investment securities 223.2 378.3 523.7 678.8
Loans to customers 27,315.7 30,212.8 26,901.9 29,971.8
Derivative financial instruments 877.2 1,569.6 553.2 1,102.6
Other financial assets 14.5 30.0 14.5 29.9
Total on Balance Sheet 31,071.1 34,863.9 29,691.7 33,348.2
Off Balance Sheet:
Loan commitments (see note 30) 184.3 169.9 152.6 139.3

Loans to customers are secured on property.

Additional information in respect of credit risk is provided in note 10 (for wholesale assets) and note 13 (for loans to
customers).

The Board has approved a framework for maximum wholesale credit counterparty limits against which total wholesale credit
exposures are continually monitored and controlled. The credit limit structure adopts a risk based matrix whereby lower
rated counterparties are afforded lower overall levels of limit. Although publicly available ratings produced by rating agencies
provide a useful guide to the creditworthiness of counterparties, an internal evaluation is also used in the limit assignment
process.  Counterparties are assigned maximum limits in accordance with the ratings matrix, based on the lowest rating
afforded to any part of the counterparty group.
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

Concentration risk
The Group has investments in a range of investment securities issued by government bodies and banks, and in asset-
backed securities, in both the UK and overseas. UK government securities, bank and supranational bonds comprise 14%
(2014: 28%) of investment securities held. 73% (2014: 74%) of the asset-backed securities are backed by UK assets.
Further details in respect of concentrations in the wholesale assets portfolio are given in note 10.

The Group operates primarily in the UK, and adverse changes to the UK economy could impact all areas of the Group’s
business. Residential loans to customers are all secured on property in the UK. 69% (2014: 66%) of residential loans to
customers are concentrated in the buy-to-let market; most of the remaining balances are secured on residential owner-
occupied properties.

The residential loan book of £26.9bn (2014: £29.8bn) is geographically spread across the UK broadly in line with the
country’s housing stock. Consequently, there is a geographic concentration of mortgages secured on properties in London
and the South-East representing 49% (2014: 50%) of the book.

Within the commercial mortgage portfolio and housing association loans, there are 29 loans (2014: 37) totalling £399.6m
(2014: £454.8m), with the largest 10 loans accounting for 92% (2014: 86%) of the portfolio. All of these loans are secured on
commercial properties.

For derivative financial instruments the Group uses a range of approaches to mitigate credit risk, including internal control
policies, obtaining collateral, using master netting agreements and other credit risk transfers. Derivative transactions with
wholesale counterparties are typically collateralised, in the form of cash or highly liquid securities, under a Credit Support
Annex in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement. All outstanding positions are held with wholesale counterparties with
at a minimum of a BBB+ credit rating.

(b) Liquidity risk
The Group and Company closely monitor their liquidity position against the Board’s liquidity policy. Minimum and target
liquidity levels are established through stress testing and cash flow forecasting, taking into consideration an assessment of
any emerging and potentially extreme funding conditions.

The table below analyses the Group's and Company's financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings:

Group

On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months
but within

one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.3 0.3 - - - - 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand 1,564.4 30.5 - - - - 1,594.9
Investment securities - 31.7 17.9 26.4 23.0 124.2 223.2
Loans to customers 96.4 68.3 77.6 297.9 2,117.7 24,657.8 27,315.7
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging

- 0.4 0.4 0.8 3.5 409.4 414.5

Derivative financial instruments - 1.9 38.1 - 501.9 335.3 877.2
Other financial assets - 14.5 - - - - 14.5
Total financial assets 2,706.1 147.6 134.0 325.1 2,646.1 25,526.7 31,485.6
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 503.6 - - - - - 503.6
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3
Derivative financial instruments - 3.6 0.2 5.3 23.5 466.5 499.1
Debt securities in issue 2.5 176.9 190.5 208.7 4,100.0 1,575.2 6,253.8
Capital instruments - - - - - 7.8 7.8
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - - - - 87.0
Total financial liabilities 21,457.6 279.3 190.7 214.0 4,123.5 2,049.5 28,314.6
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Group

On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months

but within
one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.2 0.5 - - - - 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 1,554.4 0.1 - - - - 1,554.5
Investment securities - 38.4 34.6 24.0 98.6 182.7 378.3
Loans to customers 80.6 74.7 78.7 148.6 2,400.3 27,429.9 30,212.8
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging - (0.5) (0.5) (1.0) (9.8) 234.8 223.0
Derivative financial instruments - 13.2 0.1 3.2 957.6 595.5 1,569.6
Other financial assets - 30.0 - - - - 30.0
Total financial assets 2,753.2 156.4 112.9 174.8 3,446.7 28,442.9 35,086.9
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 674.3 - - - - - 674.3
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 23,391.2 24.1 - - - - 23,415.3
Derivative financial instruments - 2.4 1.0 4.4 54.4 269.7 331.9
Debt securities in issue 3.0 252.0 143.7 205.4 4,934.5 2,000.0 7,538.6
Capital instruments - - - - - 159.1 159.1
Other financial liabilities - 105.2 - - - - 105.2
Total financial liabilities 24,068.5 383.7 144.7 209.8 4,988.9 2,428.8 32,224.4

Company

On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months
but within

one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.3 0.3 - - - - 1,045.6
Cash at bank and in hand 622.3 30.5 - - - - 652.8
Investment securities 300.5 31.7 17.9 26.4 23.0 124.2 523.7
Loans to customers 6,285.2 50.6 61.6 262.9 1,548.0 18,693.6 26,901.9
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging - 0.4 0.4 0.8 3.5 409.4 414.5
Derivative financial instruments - 1.9 38.1 - 501.9 11.3 553.2
Other financial assets - 14.5 - - - - 14.5
Total financial assets 8,253.3 129.9 118.0 290.1 2,076.4 19,238.5 30,106.2
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 9.8 - - - - - 9.8
Other deposits 2,928.3 - - - - - 2,928.3
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3
Derivative financial instruments - 3.6 0.2 5.3 23.5 466.5 499.1
Debt securities in issue 2.5 87.8 88.5 2.8 2,621.9 27.9 2,831.4
Capital instruments - - - - - 7.8 7.8
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - - - - 84.7
Total financial liabilities 23,892.1 187.9 88.7 8.1 2,645.4 502.2 27,324.4
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months

but within
one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Balances with the Bank of England 1,118.2 0.5 - - - - 1,118.7
Cash at bank and in hand 446.3 0.1 - - - - 446.4
Investment securities 300.5 38.4 34.6 24.0 98.6 182.7 678.8
Loans to customers 7,070.1 57.4 59.6 110.6 1,842.9 20,831.2 29,971.8
Fair value adjustments on portfolio
hedging

- (0.5) (0.5) (1.0) (9.8) 234.8 223.0

Derivative financial instruments - 13.2 0.1 3.2 957.6 128.5 1,102.6
Other financial assets - 29.9 - - - - 29.9
Total financial assets 8,935.1 139.0 93.8 136.8 2,889.3 21,377.2 33,571.2
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 4.2 - - - - - 4.2
Other deposits 3,315.1 - - - - - 3,315.1
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 23,391.2 24.1 - - - - 23,415.3
Derivative financial instruments - 2.4 1.0 4.4 54.4 269.7 331.9
Debt securities in issue 3.0 161.9 65.8 24.6 3,099.3 281.8 3,636.4
Capital instruments - - - - - 159.1 159.1
Other financial liabilities - 101.3 - - - - 101.3
Total financial liabilities 26,713.5 289.7 66.8 29.0 3,153.7 710.6 30,963.3

HM Treasury has indicated that it expects the loan and the WCF provided to the Group by HM Treasury and the Statutory
Debt due to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme to be repaid out of the cash flows generated by the Group during
its wind-down.  It is not possible to specify the contractual maturity dates of the loans to the Group from HM Treasury and
from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme and therefore they have been included in the table above as though
repayable on demand.

Debt securities in issue include notes which securitise loans to customers through SPVs. These notes are repaid on a pass-
through basis.  In the above table, maturities of such notes are based on the expected repayment of notes which, in turn,
are derived from the expected redemption profiles of securitised loans.

In the above table, where derivatives have been taken out in order to hedge mortgage backed securitised notes, the timings
of derivative payments are based on the expected repayment dates of the hedged notes.

Following the repurchase and cancellation during the year of the majority of the Group’s capital instruments the remaining
notes in issue are £5.0m principal of notes which are not callable but are assumed in the above table to be redeemed on 31
December 2055; further details are provided in note 26.

Other assets and liabilities are included in the above table according to the earliest date that payment can be contractually
demanded.  It should be noted that many financial instruments are settled earlier than their contractual maturity date; in
particular, many mortgage loans are repaid early, in full or in part.

Assets and liabilities with a remaining period to contractual maturity of within one year are classed as current and those with
a remaining period of more than one year are classed as non-current. Non-financial assets and liabilities of the Group
amount to £146.6m and £128.9m respectively (2014: £67.7m and £115.2m) of which £7.5m and £57.6m respectively are
classed as current (2014: £6.4m and £55.1m) and £139.1m and £71.3m respectively are classed as non-current (2014:
£61.3m and £60.1m).  Non-financial assets and liabilities of the Company amount to £321.6m and £94.5m respectively
(2014: £241.9m and £109.6m) of which £7.5m and £29.4m respectively are classed as current (2014: £5.6m and £47.6m)
and £314.1m and £65.1m respectively are classed as non-current (2014: £236.3m and £62.0m).
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
Non-derivative cash flows
The table below analyses the Group’s and Company's non-derivative cash flows payable into relevant periods. The
assumptions used in the preparation of this table are consistent with those used in the maturity table on pages 72 to 74.
The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash outflows.  These differ from Balance Sheet values due to the
effects of discounting on certain Balance Sheet items and due to the inclusion of contractual future interest flows.

Group

On
demand

Within
three

 months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months

but within
one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 503.6 - - - - - 503.6
Statutory Debt and HM
Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3
Debt securities in issue 2.5 190.5 196.4 223.4 4,131.0 1,658.2 6,402.0
Capital instruments - - - - - 18.0 18.0
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - - - - 87.0
Loan commitments 184.3 - - - - - 184.3
Total 21,641.9 289.3 196.4 223.4 4,131.0 1,676.2 28,158.2

Group

On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months
but within
one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 674.3 - - - - - 674.3
Statutory Debt and HM
Treasury loans 23,391.2 24.1 - - - - 23,415.3
Debt securities in issue 3.0 259.4 145.3 211.0 5,082.8 2,061.7 7,763.2
Capital instruments - - - - - 579.8 579.8
Other financial liabilities - 105.2 - - - - 105.2
Loan commitments 169.9 - - - - - 169.9
Total 24,238.4 388.7 145.3 211.0 5,082.8 2,641.5 32,707.7

Company

On
demand

Within
three

 months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months

but within
one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 9.8 - - - - - 9.8
Other deposits 2,928.3 - - - - - 2,928.3
Statutory Debt and HM
Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3
Debt securities in issue 2.5 102.2 88.7 6.2 2,580.0 49.4 2,829.0
Capital instruments - - - - - 18.0 18.0
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - - - - 84.7
Loan commitments 152.6 - - - - - 152.6
Total 24,044.7 198.7 88.7 6.2 2,580.0 67.4 26,985.7
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

On
demand

Within
Three

 months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months
but within
one year

After
one year

but within
five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 4.2 - - - - - 4.2
Other deposits 3,315.1 - - - - - 3,315.1
Statutory Debt and HM
Treasury loans 23,391.2 24.1 - - - - 23,415.3
Debt securities in issue 3.0 180.4 67.4 30.1 3,246.5 345.1 3,872.5
Capital instruments - - - - - 579.7 579.7
Other financial liabilities - 101.3 - - - - 101.3
Loan commitments 139.3 - - - - - 139.3
Total 26,852.8 305.8 67.4 30.1 3,246.5 924.8 31,427.4

Derivative cash flows
The following table analyses cash outflows for the Group’s and Company's derivative financial liabilities. The amounts are
allocated into relevant periods using assumptions consistent with those used in the preparation of the maturity table on
pages 72 to 74.

Group and Company On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months
but within

one year

After
one year

but within
 five years

After
five years Total

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Derivative financial liabilities to
be settled on a net basis - 10.2 10.3 21.5 166.6 805.4 1,014.0
Derivative financial liabilities to
be settled on a gross basis:
- outflows - - - - - 16.1 16.1
- inflows - - - - (0.3) (18.9) (19.2)

Total - 10.2 10.3 21.5 166.3 802.6 1,010.9

Group and Company On
demand

Within
three

months

After
three months

but within
six months

After
six months

but within
one year

After
one year

but within
 five years

After
five years      Total

At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m          £m
Derivative financial liabilities to
be settled on a net basis - 23.7 17.4 37.7 202.8 878.9 1,160.5
Derivative financial liabilities to
be settled on a gross basis:
- outflows - 0.4 0.4 0.9 7.1 139.9 148.7
- inflows - (0.6) (0.6) (1.3) (10.2) (139.2) (151.9)

Total - 23.5 17.2 37.3 199.7 879.6 1,157.3
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Market risk
The following table describes the significant activities that were undertaken by the Group prior to nationalisation and which
currently give rise to financial or market risk, the potential consequences associated with such activities and the derivative
instruments used by the Group to mitigate the risks arising.

Activity Risk Type of derivative instrument used
Legacy funding in sterling involving either fixed
rate instruments or instruments with embedded
options

Sensitivity to changes in interest
rates

Interest rate swaps

Fixed and capped rate mortgages and legacy
investments involving either fixed rate
instruments or instruments with embedded
options

Sensitivity to changes in interest
rates

Interest rate swaps and options

Variable rate mortgage balances Sensitivity to changes in interest
rates

Interest rate swaps

Legacy investments and funding in foreign
currencies

Sensitivity to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates

Cross-currency interest rate swaps
and foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate swaps:
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts in Cash Flow Hedge Relationships ('CFHR')
as at 31 March 2015 were £1.8bn (2014: £4.4bn) for Group and Company.

Gains and losses recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve on interest rate swap contracts as at 31 March 2015 will be
continually released to the Income Statement up until the maturity of the hedging instruments in 2022.

Cross currency swaps:
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding cross currency swaps in an eligible CFHR as at 31 March 2015 were
£4.4bn in the Group (31 Mar 2014: £4.8bn) and £2.4bn in the Company (31 Mar 2014: £2.6bn).

The hedged transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to mature at various intervals over the next 17
years.  Gains and losses recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve on cross currency swap contracts as at 31 March 2015
will be released to the Income Statement during the periods in which the hedged transactions affect the Income Statement,
the latest maturity of these transactions in the Group being in 2031.

The accounting policy for derivatives and hedge accounting is described in note 1(i), and further details of hedge accounting
are provided in note 33(e).

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk typically arises from mismatches between the repricing dates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities on the
Group’s/Company's Balance Sheet, and from the investment profile of the Group’s/Company's capital and reserves. The
Finance & Investment Director is responsible for managing this exposure within the risk exposure limits set out in the Market
Risk policy, as approved by the Board. This policy sets out the nature of the market risks that may be taken along with
aggregate risk limits, and stipulates the procedures, instruments and controls to be used in managing market risk.

Market risk is the potential adverse change in income or net worth arising from movements in interest rates, exchange rates
or other market prices. Effective identification and management of market risk is essential for maintaining stable net interest
income.

The Group measures, monitors and controls the following interest rate risks and sensitivities:

 Mismatch risk
 Yield curve
 Prepayment risk
 Basis risk
 Reset risk

Exposures are reviewed as appropriate by senior management and the Board with a frequency between daily and monthly,
related to the granularity of the position.

Interest rate risk exposure is predominantly managed through the use of interest rate derivatives, principally interest rate
swaps.  The Group/Company also use asset and liability positions to offset exposures naturally wherever possible to
minimise the costs and risks of arranging transactions external to the Group/Company.
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35.  Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivities are reported to ALCO monthly and are calculated using a range of interest rate scenarios,
including non-parallel shifts in the yield curve.

The main metrics used by management are:

(i) the change in value of the Group’s net worth due to a notional 2% parallel move in market and base rates.

31 Mar 2015
£m

31 Mar 2014
£m

2% increase 11.9 7.0
2% decrease (15.8) (4.7)

(ii) the sensitivity of the Group’s interest margin over 12 months to a notional 2% parallel move in market and base rates.

31 Mar 2015
£m

31 Mar 2014
£m

2% increase 451.1 418.4
2% decrease (110.7) (109.7)

Foreign currency risk
The Group’s policy is to hedge all material foreign currency exposures by use of naturally offsetting foreign currency assets
and liabilities or by the use of derivatives. Consequently, at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 the Group and Company had
no net material exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations or changes in foreign currency interest rates.

The impact on the Group’s and Company's profit and equity of reasonably possible changes in exchange rates compared to
actual rates would not have been material at 31 March 2015 or 31 March 2014.

The table below summarises the Group's and Company's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the Balance
Sheet date. Included in the table are the Group's and Company's financial instruments, under the relevant currency
headings. The amounts disclosed are the sterling equivalents of the notional amounts due on maturity, including interest
accrued at the Balance Sheet date, less any impairment provisions.

Group € $ Other Total
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Cash at bank and in hand 510.0 15.9 - 525.9
Investment securities 65.6 44.0 - 109.6
Derivative financial instruments 3,598.0 940.5 416.2 4,954.7
Total financial assets 4,173.6 1,000.4 416.2 5,590.2

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 493.8 - - 493.8
Derivative financial instruments 34.0 74.0 - 108.0
Debt securities in issue 3,645.5 925.7 416.2 4,987.4
Total financial liabilities 4,173.3 999.7 416.2 5,589.2

Net currency gap 0.3 0.7 - 1.0

Group € $ Other Total
At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Cash at bank and in hand 682.3 36.0 - 718.3
Investment securities 195.2 75.7 - 270.9
Derivative financial instruments 4,445.0 870.2 623.1 5,938.3
Total financial assets 5,322.5 981.9 623.1 6,927.5

Financial liabilities:
Amounts due to banks 670.1 - - 670.1
Derivative financial instruments 94.9 42.0 - 136.9
Debt securities in issue 4,556.6 936.2 623.1 6,115.9
Total financial liabilities 5,321.6 978.2 623.1 6,922.9

Net currency gap 0.9 3.7 - 4.6
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35. Financial risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Company € $ Other Total
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Cash at bank and in hand 16.2 15.9 - 32.1
Investment securities 65.6 44.0 - 109.6
Derivative financial instruments 2,181.3 - 416.2 2,597.5
Total financial assets 2,263.1 59.9 416.2 2,739.2

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 34.0 74.0 - 108.0
Debt securities in issue 2,224.9 - 416.2 2,641.1
Total financial liabilities 2,258.9 74.0 416.2 2,749.1

Net currency gap 4.2 (14.1) - (9.9)

Company € $ Other Total
At 31 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Cash at bank and in hand 12.2 36.0 - 48.2
Investment securities 195.2 75.7 - 270.9
Derivative financial instruments 2,669.9 (66.0) 623.1 3,227.0
Total financial assets 2,877.3 45.7 623.1 3,546.1

Financial liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 94.9 42.0 - 136.9
Debt securities in issue 2,781.5 - 623.1 3,404.6
Total financial liabilities 2,876.4 42.0 623.1 3,541.5

Net currency gap 0.9 3.7 - 4.6

36. Contingent liabilities

(a) On 20 January 2009 a solicitor's letter was received notifying B&B and certain present and former B&B directors of a
potential claim by former individual shareholders who subscribed for additional shares in the £401m rights issue approved
on 17 July 2008. These former shareholders claim to have suffered loss through having been induced to subscribe for
shares in the rights issue by allegedly materially misleading and/or incomplete statements made in the associated
prospectus dated 24 June 2008 as revised and supplemented by the supplementary prospectus dated 11 July 2008. Should
such a claim result in proceedings which are pursued through the courts and which succeed, the defendant directors and/or
B&B could be liable in damages to certain former shareholders in B&B who subscribed for shares in the rights issue. In May
2009 B&B together with its legal advisors responded to the allegations raised. Nothing further was heard until 23 January
2012 when correspondence was received from the solicitors representing the former shareholders, to which B&B together
with its legal advisors responded. This correspondence contained no further allegations or details of the former
shareholders’ potential claim. It is not possible at this stage to determine the outcome or timing of any conclusion to this
matter.  No provision has been made in respect of these allegations.

(b) In October 2014 the Group sold a portfolio of standard mortgages for £902.0m. B&B will continue to service these loans
for a period. Under the terms of the sale, the Group provided certain warranties. Any claim under these warranties must be
made by 15 months from the date on which B&B ceases to service the loans. The Group’s maximum liability under these
warranties is limited to £44.2m (Company: £12.4m).

(c) The Company has provided a number of financial guarantees to other B&B Group companies. The Directors do not
expect any claims to be made against the Company under these guarantees and hence no provision has been made.
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37. Ultimate controlling party

All shares in the Company were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury on 29 September 2008 as
a result of The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008. On 1 October 2010 all shares in
the Company were acquired via a share-for-share exchange by UK Asset Resolution Limited, a private limited company
incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom, which is wholly owned by the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM
Treasury and is the Group's ultimate parent undertaking. UK Asset Resolution Limited heads the largest and smallest group
of companies into which the Financial Statements of B&B are consolidated. Copies of the financial statements of UK Asset
Resolution Limited may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Croft Road, Crossflatts, Bingley BD16 2UA. The
Company considers the UK government to remain its ultimate controlling party.  The results of the UKAR Group are
consolidated into those of HM Treasury as presented in HM Treasury’s Annual Reports and Accounts.

38.  Events after the reporting period

The Directors are of the opinion that there have been no significant events which have occurred since 31 March 2015 to the
date of this report that are likely to have a material effect on the Group's or the Company's financial position as disclosed in
these Financial Statements.
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

Unaudited
12 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m

Interest receivable and similar income 756.9 827.1
Interest expense and similar charges (279.3) (407.5)
Net interest income 477.6 419.6

Fee and commission income 11.8 14.6
Net realised gains less losses on investment securities 4.5 12.2
Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments 23.5 (27.3)
Hedge ineffectiveness (67.8) (4.3)
Provision for customer redress (10.3) (14.5)
Other operating income 11.8 0.7
Non-interest income (26.5) (18.6)

Net operating income 451.1 401.0

Administrative expenses (84.7) (86.2)
Impairment on loans to customers credit/(charge) 80.0 (75.0)
Net impairment release on investment securities 2.0 13.2
Profit on sale of loans 15.3 -
Loss on repurchase of own liabilities (50.3) -
Profit before taxation 413.4 253.0

Taxation (84.0) (57.4)

Profit for the period 329.4 195.6

The unaudited 2014 information above has been prepared using accounting bases and policies which are consistent with
those used in the audited Financial Statements set out on pages 17 to 80.

Reconciliation of underlying profit before taxation to statutory profit before taxation

12 months to
31 Mar 2015

12 months to
31 Mar 2014

£m £m
Net interest income 477.6 419.6
Underlying non-interest income 28.1 27.5
Underlying net operating income 505.7 447.1
Administrative expenses (84.7) (86.2)
Impairment on loans to customers credit/(charge) 80.0 (75.0)
Net impairment release on investment securities 2.0 13.2
Underlying profit before taxation 503.0 299.1
Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments 23.5 (27.3)
Hedge ineffectiveness (67.8) (4.3)
Provision for customer redress (10.3) (14.5)
Profit on sale of loans 15.3 -
Loss on repurchase of own liabilities (50.3) -
Statutory profit before taxation 413.4 253.0
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